International Entertainment Corporation
Rk F R T

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RASHSEMAKZ 2 BRAR])
& 5% Stock Code: 01009

ANNUAL REPORT 4

2022/23

wd

| By K : i \
o tmaegf Ny,

g

{ |




CONTENTS B £%

Corporate Information
Chairman’s Statement
Management Discussion and Analysis

Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management

Report of the Directors

Corporate Governance Report

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
Independent Auditor's Report

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Financial Summary

Particulars of Principal Properties

The English text of this annual report shall prevail over the Chinese text in case of inconsistencies or discrepancies.

ARER
THEREE

EEE RN

5 RS RERABEERLE

-+

i

ey
X
RIE Zig ERTWE
BB RES
rEEEmRER

e MBI R
MAEEREER
MERERER

iR e PR Y 5
s E
TEVXRFE

ih’z

m}; i3S

>%%DH

==
=
H
=
4

HFFF>

REFZPRNAMAEARBELER  BIUEXIARRE -

@ This annual report is printed on environmentally friendly paper.

RERIARRAENS -

23

36

60
134
142
144
146
147
149
267
268



International Entertainment Corporation BB IREEA R A A

Corporate Information

DNAEEF

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HO Wong Meng (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAU Ka Ho
Mr. CHENG Hong Wai
Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. HO Wong Meng (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. CHENG Hong Wai (Committee Chairman)
Mr. LAU Ka Ho
Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai (Committee Chairman)
Mr. HO Wong Meng
Mr. CHENG Hong Wai

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. LAU Ka Ho (Committee Chairman)
Mr. CHENG Hong Wai
Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. WONG Wing Kit

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. HO Wong Meng
Mr. WONG Wing Kit

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O.Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

02 Annual Report £ #§ 2022/23

BITES
HO Wong Meng e 4 (B F & £ /EF1TIEAE )
Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE 4t 4=

BIFITES
BRFoE A
MO {8 55 A
RIEBFSE

WITEET
HO Wong Meng e 4 (Z 8 @ F /%)
Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE %2 4

BRERE
MR S (ZFRRE/E)
EEE Tt

RIET S

REZEYE
RIEREE(ZEEEE)
HO Wong Meng %t 4
BB R A

) EI =N

BT (ZARER)
o0 22 S

RIET S

REME
kB

RIERE
HO Wong Meng %t 4
EKEESE A

B v

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands



HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Units 2109-10, 21st Floor

Wing On House

No. 71 Des Voeux Road Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Suntera (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3
Building D, P.O. Box 1586
Gardenia Court, Camana Bay
Grand Cayman, KY1-1100
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen'’s Road East, Wan Chai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

BDO Unibank, Inc.

The Bank of East Asia, Limited
Chong Hing Bank Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Union Bank of the Philippines, Inc.

AUDITOR

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
25th Floor, Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
01009

COMPANY WEBSITE

http://www.ientcorp.com

International Entertainment Corporation  BIBRIREEA R A A

Corporate Information

NAEEH

BEMMERERTEERMES

B

EEE 71 5%
XEEBRNE
2118 2109-10%F

B8 R B SRR

Suntera (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3
Building D, P.O. Box 1586
Gardenia Court, Camana Bay
Grand Cayman, KY1-1100
Cayman Islands

BAERMBREETER

EBPRBEEZCHR AR
&5

BT 2FAKER1835R
AR L1T7HE
1712-1716 5% 48

FEFRRT

BDO Unibank, Inc.
RERITARAF]
BIEERITAR A A
BAERITER AR

Union Bank of the Philippines, Inc.

% EEm

BB EERE MBS AR AR
MESETAD

BB

TFrEEF 11158

KRN 25 48

RRAR AR
BEBBMARIMBERATR
01009

NEHEE

http://www.ientcorp.com

Annual Report € #§ 2022/23 03



B IRRE AR A A

International Entertainment Corporation

Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
International Entertainment Corporation (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2023 (the “Year").

During the Year, the principal activities of the Group are gaming operation
(leasing of investment properties equipped with entertainment equipment
to the Philippine Amusement and Gaming Corporation ("PAGCOR’) and
participation in the gaming operation), hotel operation, and live poker
events operation.

The Group's revenue for the Year was approximately HK$207.2 million,
representing an increase of approximately 142.3%, as compared with
approximately HK$85.5 million in the year ended 30 June 2022 (the
"Previous Year’). The Group reported a gross profit of approximately
HK$136.6 million for the Year under review, representing an increase of
approximately 520.9%, as compared with approximately HK$22.0 million in
the Previous Year.

The Group had a strong comeback for this Year in terms of financial
performance thanks to the return of the Philippines to one of the global
tourism and gaming hotspots following the reopening of its international
borders and the dropping of all capacity restrictions and lockdowns in the
first half of 2022. Business activities in the country have gradually picked up
since then. This Year, the economy of the Philippines has maintained a
robust growth trajectory to be on par with the pre-pandemic level and
proved itself among the fastest growing economies in Southeast Asia. We
look forward to seeing a surge of tourists arriving in the Philippines and
players in the gaming industry when we all leave the novel coronavirus
pandemic as a history behind. With the government of the Philippines
continuous efforts to push and promote the country as a global tourism
powerhouse and top gaming destination, the Group is prepared to capture
new opportunities and evolve in this post pandemic era where changes
are coming to challenge the norms from before.
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We are pleased to announce that subsequent to the Year end date, the
Group was granted the Provisional License which allows us to establish
and operate a casino and the development of an integrated resort in
Manila, the Philippines. The Group has gained its expertise in the operation
and management of casino as the Group has taken part in management of
the existing casino through its participation in the management
committee since the execution of the cooperation agreement in 2021. We
believe that the grant of the Provisional License is a milestone
development of the Group which denotes that the Group will be able to
operate and manage gaming business independently. It provides an
opportunity for the Group to participate in the gaming and entertainment
in addition to the existing hotel and hospitality markets in the Philippines
and will enhance future earning capability and potential of the Group.

As always, the Group is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices and will continue to enhance the risk
management and internal control systems to comply with the statutory
and regulatory requirements to maximise the values of the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”).

The Group will continue to focus on its existing business operations and
investments in the Philippines riding on business environment to strive for
exploring potential business opportunities.

APPRECIATION

In conclusion, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincerest
gratitude to our directors of the Company, the management team and the
employees of the Group for their relentless commitment, efforts and
creative ideas during the year. | would also like to take this opportunity to
thank our Shareholders, customers and business partners for their
continued support.

Ho Wong Meng
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 September 2023

B IRRE AR A A

International Entertainment Corporation

Chairman’s Statement

ETREHRES

BFIMAER RAFELEERZE  KAEEE
RER R THARMEFREFSENEILE
BRELEREAERR BT —F%FAQ
TEMAIAR AEBEEBMATERZEGS2HR
BREMER BRTHESEEREETENE
K@ - RIPBEE - BERERERBEASEER
M —ERRE  FREAKEGENBLEER
ERBYERE - BRIFERBERBNBERBEDS
Sh o EMMAARBERHES BB RIRERFNK
g WRHERARERKNEFGEN KBS

—WNE  AREBOBFEKFZEEERE
AR AR NSRRI I R RREE AR IE - A
NEAEREERE  BRB/ARRBRR(TKRER])
wREA(ERE -

AEBBEEEINEREUNIFRE XKL
BRNE EHAZEARE TR NRBEER
# o

R& > ANERREFEHRBALRRAZES
AEEEREERLR2BREERFRZIRA
BATBEBIERE « RATELBER—RIAE
BZBR - BEPREBBRHHRARYSS -

T THERARHTEE
Ho Wong Meng

BB —E-_=FNA=-1+)N\H

Annual Report € #§ 2022/23 05



B IRRE AR A A

International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFNWR T

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The gaming and tourism industries in the Philippines have been gaining
strong momentum since the country reopened its international borders in
February 2022, followed by the dropping of all capacity restrictions and
lockdowns in the first half of 2022. According to the information released
by PAGCOR, it has recorded total income of PHP36.21 billion in the first half
of 2023, representing a 35.6% increase from the same period of last year.
That half year revenue was just PHP2.59 billion or 6.7% less than the first
half of 2019 of PHP38.8 billion, i.e. the pre-pandemic level. The biggest
contributor to the revenues in the first half of 2023 was the income from
gaming operations and regulatory fees from its licensees, which amounted
to PHP34.12 billion. Tourism sector has continued to show its resilience.
The number of foreign tourists that arrived in the Philippines in the first of
half of 2023 was approximately 2.47 million which has already exceeded
the approximately 2 million for the whole year of 2022.

Benefited from the recovery of the industries, the Group's total revenue for
the year ended 30 June 2023 (the “Year”") increased significantly from
approximately HK$85.5 million for the year ended 30 June 2022 (the
“Previous Year’) to approximately HK$207.2 million for the Year,
representing an approximately 142.3% increase. The Group reported a
gross profit of approximately HKS$136.6 million for the Year under review, as
compared to approximately HK$22.0 million in the Previous Year. Gross
profit margin for the Year was approximately 65.9%, as compared to gross
profit margin of approximately 25.7% for the Previous Year.

Other income of the Group for the Year was approximately HK$11.9 million,
representing an increase of approximately 158.7%, as compared with
approximately HK$4.6 million for the Previous Year. This was mainly due to
increase in interest income during the Year.

Other gain/(loss) of the Group mainly was represented by net foreign
exchange gain or loss. The Group recorded a net gain of approximately
HKS$1.7 million for the Year as compared to a net loss approximately
HK$18.0 million in the Previous Year.

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$3.1 million on change in
fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the Year, as
compared to a loss of approximately HK$40.9 million in the Previous Year,
representing an approximately 92.4% decrease.

The Group also recorded a loss of approximately HK$4.3 million on change
in fair value of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss for the
Year, as compared to a gain of approximately HK$3.2 million in the Previous
Year.
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International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties has been arrived at
based on a valuation carried out by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal
and Advisory Limited, an independent professional valuer not connected
to the Group. The fair value gain for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$3.0 million, as compared to a loss of approximately HK$120.7 million for
the Previous Year. Solid improvement on the Year's operating results plus
positive economic outlook support the expected strong future cash flow
from the Group's business.

General and administrative expenses of the Group increased by
approximately 25.5% to approximately HK$97.0 million for the Year from
approximately HK$77.3 million in the Previous Year. Included in these
expenses for the Year, approximately 33.2% and 17.4% were staff costs and
utilities expenses respectively. The staff costs for the Year was
approximately HK$32.2 million, representing an increase of approximately
1.9%, as compared with approximately HK$31.6 million in the Previous
Year. The utilities expenses for the Year was approximately HK$16.9 million,
representing an increase of approximately 53.6%, as compared with
approximately HK$11.0 million in the Previous Year. Overall expenses
increased in the Year to cope with improving business performance,
especially our hotel operation where average hotel room occupancy
increased from approximately 47% in the Previous Year to approximately
84% in the Year.

Finance costs of the Group for the Year was approximately HK$26.5 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 10.2% as compared with
approximately HK$29.5 million in the Previous Year. This was mainly due to
the full settlement of the bank loan in the Year.

The Group recorded income tax expenses of approximately HK$2.8 million
for the Year, as compared to a tax credit of approximately HK$6.8 million in
the Previous Year.

The Group recorded a profit of approximately HK$18.3 million for the Year
as compared with a loss of approximately HK$256.4 million for the Previous
Year.

The earnings per share for the Year amounted to approximately 1.34 HK
cents, as compared with the loss per share of approximately 18.73 HK cents
for the Previous Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFNWR T

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Group are gaming operation (leasing of

investment properties equipped with entertainment equipment to
PAGCOR and participation in the gaming operation), hotel operation and
live events.

1.

08

Gaming operation

The “Gaming Operation” segment represents leasing of investment
properties equipped with entertainment equipment to PAGCOR and
participation in the gaming operation.

The revenue derived from the gaming operation is based on an
agreed percentage of net gaming revenue generated from the local
gaming area operated by PAGCOR or a fixed amount, whichever is
higher.

The revenue derived from the gaming operation for the Year was
approximately HK$133.5 million, representing an increase of
approximately 152.4%, as compared with the gaming operation of
approximately HK$52.9 million in the Previous Year. Most anti-
pandemic measures such as border restriction and different levels of
community quarantine requirements had been lifted by the
government of the Philippines in 2022. Capacity restriction for
casinos in Manila has been dropped since March 2022. Performance
in the segment has shown a significant recovery since then. It
contributed approximately 64.4% of the Group's revenue during the
Year under review (the Previous Year: 61.8%).

At 30 June 2023 and 2022, there were tax disputes between MSPI, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and BIR in the
Philippines. Please refer to Note 11
statements in this report for more details and estimated contingent

to the consolidated financial

liabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

2.

Hotel operation

The revenue derived from the hotel operation mainly includes room
revenue, revenue from food and beverages and other hotel service
income. The hotel of the Group is located in Manila City which is a
tourist spot with churches and historical sites as well as various night
spots catered for tourists and is one of the major tourist destinations
in the Philippines.

The revenue derived from the hotel operation for the Year was
approximately HK$73.7 million, representing an increase of
approximately 126.1%, as compared with approximately HK$32.6
million in the Previous Year. Included in the total hotel revenue for
the Year was approximately HK$49.7 million or 67.4% contributed by
room revenue (Previous Year: HK$24.3 million or 74.5%). The increase
in total revenue was mainly due to increase in average hotel room
occupancy from approximately 47% in the Previous Year to
approximately 84% in the Year, plus the increase in revenue from the
food and beverages service.

Live events

The revenue represented income from sponsorship and entrance fee
of live poker events. However, there was no live poker event during
the Year.
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International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWE D

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Following the reopening of the international borders and the lifting of
most of the anti-pandemic measures in the first half of 2022, the gaming
industry and tourism industry in the Philippines have gradually recovered.
Business environment in the Philippines has become more favourable and
economic activities are reaching pre-pandemic levels. With the
government's supportive policies to boost the economy, it is believed that
the growth momentum of gaming and tourism industries will be sustained
and even surpass the pre-pandemic levels in the near term.

However, challenges such as inflation, measures undertaken by other
countries to promote tourism recovery, and geopolitical tensions may have
an impact on the pace of recovery of economy in the Philippines. The
Group remains cautiously optimistic about the outlook for tourism and
gaming industry in the Philippines. The Group will continue to focus on its
existing business operations and investments in the Philippines riding on
business environment to strive for exploring potential business
opportunities.

Subsequent to the reporting period, the Group was granted the Provisional
License. We are pleased to announce that on 27 September 2023, MSPI
and New Coast Leisure Inc., a domestic corporation registered and
organized under the laws of the Philippines, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company in the Philippines as licensee (the “Licensee”)
and PAGCOR as licensor entered into the Provisional License Agreement
pursuant to which PAGCOR has granted the Provisional License to the
Licensee to establish and operate a casino and the development of an
integrated resort in the City of Manila, the Philippines. PAGCOR shall issue
the regular casino gaming license (the “Regular Casino Gaming
License”) upon completion of the project and upon approval by PAGCOR
of the Licensee’s compliance with the implementation plan in relation to
the actual total project cost. The Regular Casino Gaming License is
renewable subject to the same terms and conditions of the Provisional
License. The effectivity or term of the Provisional License and the Regular
Casino Gaming License shall be co-terminus with the franchise of PAGCOR
which shall be effective from the date of the Provisional License Agreement
until 11 July 2033.

The casino in the existing hotel is currently operated by PAGCOR. Pursuant
to the cooperation agreement dated 9 August 2021, MSPI has taken part in
management of the existing casino through its participation in the
management committee. The Group has gained its expertise in the
operation and management of casino. Upon the commencement of the
operation of the Provisional Licence, the operation and management of
the existing casino will be transferred to the Licensee to run the casino.

10 Annual Report £ #§ 2022/23

RE

BE T - _—F L FRRERENFHMSAER
REA R FFRBBRITERIKERZ W
EE-FRENEHRFEFENEN  LEE
B IEEBURBRIKF o BT RIS BB K
R T BEBYRRERNERDBRBSARE -
HEERERRBERIBAIKFE

A BERER  EHBERSEEREXRERM
REVHHE I A KA BUR R R BB EE A e Y
FFREREBENERSKERNTE - AEEHIER
BIRBELBETENANREREREBAEE - N
SEREETINERRUNFREZFTHLE
& ERRIZZ2RARE N RARBEERK -

WEHIREE - AEBERGERER o BAMA
i RZZE_=ZFNLA=++H  MSPI &New
Coast Leisure Inc. (IRIZIFERE B AR AL IE
ARTF]  BARRIRIERENHEZERBAR)
(ERFEA) ([#5h A ) R PAGCOR (TERFEHEAN)
RIS ERRFRE Bk - BBt - PAGCORMIFME AR T
BRRER  UNERERENMEYREERES
NEBERGEERRE - INIEB ST & PAGCOR R AT
BANEREEBKATESRNITATEE  PAGCOR
B EXESETER(EXESEEERR]) -
ERBEISE LB AT IR R M2 R 18 T AR A ISR
MIGHEE - BRERBREEXESBEERBE R
HRER PAGCORE & — 2 - B a2 R iz B At
E-F==F+A+—Hlik-

[mf St

REBRIFAABIENKES B BB PAGCOREE 1R
BHSAE T -—F \ANBBNAERHZE  MSPI
ERETEZECHE2HRAREEEE - A%
BECREZESLEENEENH BREEBRERAZ
Eig RAEHESEERETEREVEFIERANUE
BHES o



B IRRE AR A A

International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE OUTLOOK (Continued)

With most of the COVID-19 restrictions now lifted, there were approximately
1.3 million international tourist arrivals in the Philippines in the first quarter of
2023. The Philippines Department of Tourism revealed it is aiming to attract 5
million foreign visitors in 2023. The Directors consider that the influx of
tourists to the Philippines will boost the economy therein and benefits to the
gaming and entertainment industry. The Directors consider that the grant of
the Provisional License will provide an opportunity for the Group to
participate in the gaming and entertainment in addition to the existing hotel
and hospitality markets in the Philippines and will enhance future earning
capability and potential of the Group. The grant of the Provisional License
will be a milestone development of the Group which denotes that the Group
is able to operate and manage casino business and gambling activities
independently.

Regarding for the future development of an integrated resort, the Board
will consider different financing methods such as bank borrowing and/or
equity financing (as the case may be) in order to expand our business and
maintain the liquidity of the Group.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30 June 2023, the Group’s net current assets amounted to
approximately HK$132.4 million (as at 30 June 2022: HK$97.0 million).
Current assets amounted to approximately HK$602.5 million (as at 30 June
2022: HK$564.6 million), of which approximately HK$492.5 million (as at 30
June 2022: HK$512.1 million) was bank balances and cash, approximately
HKS$14.3 million (as at 30 June 2022: HK$13.0 million) was trade receivables,
approximately HK$27.4 million (as at 30 June 2022: HK$29.0 million) was
other receivables, deposits and prepayments, approximately HK$1.2 million
(as at 30 June 2022: HK$1.2 million) was inventories, approximately HK$5.3
million (as at 30 June 2022: HK$8.2 million) was financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, approximately HK$0.5 million (as at 30 June 2022:
HKS$0.2 million) was contract assets, approximately HK$0.9 million (as at 30
June 2022: HK$0.9 million) was amounts due from associates, and
approximately HK$60.4 million (as at 30 June 2022: nil) was income tax
recoverable.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (Continued)

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had current liabilities amounted to
approximately HK$470.1 million (as at 30 June 2022: HKS$467.6 million), of
which approximately HK$1.9 million (as at 30 June 2022: HK$2.1 million)
was trade payables, approximately HK$47.6 million (as at 30 June 2022:
HK$30.3 million) was other payables and accrued charges, approximately
HKS$1.5 million (as at 30 June 2022: HK$0.2 million) was contract liabilities,
bank borrowings was HKSNil (as at 30 June 2022: HK$31.2 million),
approximately HK$416.3 million (as at 30 June 2022: HK$400.3 million) was
promissory notes and approximately HK$2.7 million (as at 30 June 2022:
HKS$3.5 million) was lease liabilities.

The bank balances and cash of the Group as at 30 June 2023 was mainly
denominated in Peso, HKS and United States Dollars (“"USD”).

Net cash generated from operating activities of the Group for the Year
under review was approximately HK$6.7 million, while net cash used in
operating activities of the Group was approximately HK$0.7 million for the
Previous Year. Net assets attributable to the owners of the Company as at
30 June 2023 amounted to approximately HK$1,207.0 million, representing
an increase of approximately 0.9%, as compared with approximately
HKS$1,195.9 million as at 30 June 2022.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (Continued)

On 27 July 2017, the Company entered into a placing agreement with a
placing agent (the “Placing Agreement”). The completion of the placing
took place on 10 August 2017. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Placing Agreement, an aggregate of 190,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$1.00 each as placing shares were successfully placed by
the placing agent at the placing price of HK$1.90 per placing share. Further
details are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 27 July
2017 and 10 August 2017. The net proceeds from the placing, after
deducting the placing commission and other related expenses payable by
the Company, were approximately HK$358.50 million. The net proceeds
from the placing were intended to be used as to (i) approximately
HKS$150.0 million for the renovation of a hotel of the Group in Manila City
(the "Hotel"); (ii) approximately HK$100.0 million for the development of
the parcels of land adjacent to the Hotel (the “New Hotel Land"), including
but not limited to the construction of a carpark and amenities of the Hotel,
and the provision of a facility to an independent third party for the
acquisition of the New Hotel Land; (iii) approximately HK$70.0 million for
the potential acquisition of, including but not limited to, lands in the
Philippines for the construction of hotel(s) and/or casino(s); and (iv) the
remaining proceeds for the general working capital of the Group.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (Continued)

Set forth below is a summary of the utilisation of the net proceeds as at 30

nEEE. UBERRENGRE @)

TXERR - - =F A=+ HABREFHE

June 2023: BRI R
Amount of Balance of
the net proceeds the net proceeds
Intended use of utilised as at unutilised as at
the net proceeds 30June 2023 30June 2023
R=B=Zf RZBZ=f
AA=TH ~A=t1H
FigsE BEAMETE REAMEHE
RERTERE BHEEH R
(HKS million) (HKS million) (HKS million)
(RE#T) (BB#T) (REAT)
Renovation of the Hotel BERE 1500 1500 =
Development of the New Hotel Land, BB (REETERR 1000 526 474
including but not limited to the RRBENEESREN
construction of a carpark and amenities 3R 1) kR AR EE R R
of the Hotel, and the provision of BUE=RRERE (W)
afacility to an independent third party
for the acquisition of
the New Hotel Land (Note 1)
Potential acquisition (the “Potential AR (BEEARR) RS 700 - 700
Acquisition’) of, including but not E’]j:iﬁML BER/ iR
limited to, lands in the Philippines for 15 ([ T4 EE ST )
the construction of hotel(s) and/or
casino(s)
General working capital of the Group ~~ REEHI—REEES 385 385 =
Total st 3585 2411 174
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (Continued)

Notes:

1. The HK$52.6 million utilised comprised HK$51.9 million loan to Harbor View
Properties and Holdings, Inc. for the acquisition of the New Hotel Land and HK$0.7
million for the payment of the design and consultancy services fees for the
development of the New Hotel Land. Priority will be given to the development of
the new lands to be acquired in the Potential Acquisition before the development
of the New Hotel Land.

2. Referring to the Company's announcement dated 27 September 2023 in relation
to the grant of the Provisional License by PAGCOR to the Group’s companies to
establish and operate a casino and the development of an integrated resort in the
City of Manila, the Philippines, the Group is aligning its plan for the Potential
Acquisition and the development of New Hotel Land with the master
development plan proposal for development of the integrated resort under the
Provisional License. The expected timeline for application of all the balance of the
net proceeds will be postponed to on or before 30 June 2024. Should there be any
material change in the intended use of the balance of the net proceeds, the
Company will make appropriate announcement in due course.

The gearing ratio, measured in terms of the carrying values of total
borrowings divided by total assets, was approximately 24.7% (as at 30 June
2022:25.3%).

The Group financed its operations including but not limited to internally
generated cash flows and the issuance of promissory notes.

During the Year, there were no changes in the capital structure of the
Company. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Capital
Reduction and the Share Sub-division were completed. Details of the
Capital Reduction and the Share Sub-division are set out in the Company's
announcements dated 2 May 2023, 22 May 2023, 6 July 2023 and 11
August 2023 and the Company’s circular dated 5 May 2023.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Owing to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic since the early of 2020,
countries across the world are taking unprecedented measures to combat
the spread of the virus. Travel restriction, travellers quarantine and even
“lock down" policies have been impacting the global economy seriously.
Visitation to the Philippines decreased drastically since the outbreak.
Different degrees of community quarantine measures were imposed by
the Philippines government during the Year under review. The Group's
hotel and the casino in the hotel may be subject to temporary mandated
closures to comply with those anti-pandemic measures. All these may pose
a negative impact on the Group's revenue from its hotel and gaming
operations in the Philippines.
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)

It is uncertain when this will end. The Group will closely monitor the
current market situation and make corresponding measures such as cost
control policy in order to sustain our business.

The Group continues to face significant risks and uncertainties from the
economic growth and the competition in the market that the Group
operates, and changes in economic, political and social conditions and
changes in the relevant laws and regulations in the places that the Group
operates.

The Group is also exposed to currency risk as the Group's assets and
liabilities are mainly denominated in HKS, USD, Peso and EURO and the
Group primarily earns its revenue and income in HKS, USD and Peso while
the Group primarily incurs costs and expenses mainly in HKS and Peso.

In addition, uncertainties exist with regard to the tax disputes between
certain subsidiaries of the Company operating in the Philippines and the
BIR in the Philippines.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the Year
(for the Previous Year: nil).

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Save as otherwise mentioned in this report, during the year ended 30 June
2023, there was no incidence of non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations of the places in which the Group operates that has a
significant impact on the business operations of the Group.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 30 June 2022, the bank loan was secured by the Group's investment
properties amounted to approximately HK$993 million.

In August 2022, the entire outstanding balance of the bank loan had been

settled. As at 30 June 2023, there was no charge created over the Group’s
assets.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

On 27 September 2023, the Group entered into a Provisional License
Agreement pursuant to which PAGCOR has granted the Provisional License
to the Group’s companies to establish and operate a casino and the
development of an integrated resort in the City of Manila, the Philippines.
The effectivity or term of the Provisional License and the Regular Casino
Gaming License shall be co-terminus with the franchise of PAGCOR which
shall be effective from the date of the Provisional License Agreement until
11 July 2033. Pursuant to the Provisional License Agreement, the Group will
make the total investment commitment of no less than US$1.0 billion
(equivalent to approximately HK$7.82 billion) and up to US$1.2 billion
(equivalent to approximately HK$9.38 billion) for the project under the
Provisional License. The total investment commitment comprises land
acquisition costs, costs related to securing development rights,
construction, equipment, development costs, financing costs and all other
expenses directly related to the completion of the project. Details of the
terms of Provisional License Agreement are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 27 September 2023.

Based on preliminary assessment by management, the Group would
change the use of its properties interest held for rental income to held for
own use under the Provisional License Agreement, the “investment
properties” will be reclassified as “property, plant and equipment” with
corresponding deferred tax liabilities related to the investment properties
will also be derecognized at the date of change in use. After reclassification,
the properties will depreciate according to the accounting policy of the
Group.

In order to enhance the attraction of the entertainment equipment in the
Group's casino, our wholly owned subsidiary, MSPI as a purchaser and RGB
as vendor entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreements in relation to the
purchase of 382 various slot machines, related license and controllers for
the aggregate consideration of US$5,732,582 during the Year. For details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 12 May 2023.

Save as disclosed above, there was no acquisition or disposal of subsidiary
and associated company or significant investments of the Group, which
would have been required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules for the
Year.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group will continue to explore the market and identify any business
opportunities which may provide its growth and development potential,
enhance the profitability, and strive for better return to the Shareholders.
The Group will also continue to consider a renovation plan to improve the
properties of the Group as well as the facilities therein so as to attract more
guests and enhance their experience during their stays.
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND ANY RELATED HEDGES

The functional currency of the Company is Peso, the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company’s major subsidiaries
operate. The consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented
in HKS as the Directors consider that it is an appropriate presentation for a
company listed in Hong Kong and for the convenience of the Shareholders.

The Group's assets and liabilities are mainly denominated in HKS, USD, Peso
and EURO. The Group primarily earns its revenue and income in HKS, USD
and Peso while the Group primarily incurs costs and expenses mainly in
HKS and Peso. Therefore, the Group may be exposed to currency risk.

The Group has not implemented any foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group will monitor foreign currency
exposure for each business segment and review the needs of individual
geographical area, and consider appropriate hedging policy in future when
necessary.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The total number of employees of the Group was 240 as at 30 June 2023
(as at 30 June 2022: 218). The staff costs for the Year was approximately
HK$33.8 million (the Previous Year: HK$33.0 million), among which, HK$32.2
million (the Previous Year: HK$31.6 million) was included in the general and
administrative expenses, and HKS$1.6 million (the Previous Year: HKS1.4
million) was included in cost of sales. The remuneration policy of the
Company is recommended by the remuneration committee of the
Company. The remuneration of the Directors and the employees of the
Group is based on the performance and experience of the individuals and
is determined with reference to the Group’'s performance, the
remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions. In addition to the salaries, the employees of the Group are
entitled to benefits including medical, insurance and retirement benefits.
Besides, the Group regularly provides internal and external training courses
for the employees of the Group to meet their needs.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period is set out in Note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ho Wong Meng (“Mr. Ho"), aged 51, joined the Company in
September 2020, and is an executive Director, the chairman of the Board
and the chief executive officer of the Company. He is also a member and
the Chairman of the executive committee and a member of the
nomination committee of the Company. He is also the directors of various
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Ho possesses more than 23 years of extensive experience and
exceptional expertise in the gaming and hospitality industry. He also has a
vast knowledge and experience in the establishment and operation of
casinos and integrated resorts throughout the industry. Mr. Ho specialises
in and has deep understanding of the Asian gaming and hospitality
industries. Mr. Ho is the executive chairman and director of Frontier Capital
Group Limited, which was previously listed on the Australian Securities
Exchange (ASX code: FCG).

Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. is an exempted limited partnership
established in accordance with the Exempted Limited Partnership Law of
Cayman Islands. The general partner of Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. is
Excite Investments Holdings Limited, an exempted company established
under the law of Cayman Islands and is solely owned by Mr. Ho. As such,
Mr. Ho is deemed to be interested in 260,000,000 Shares of the Company
(the “Shares”) held by Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), representing approximately 18.99% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ho was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante ("Mr. Tablante”), aged 57, joined the
Company in April 2022, and is an executive Director of the Company. He is
also a member of the executive committee of the Company, and a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Tablante has been with the
Group since 2018, overseeing the strategic planning, overall operations
and corporate management affairs in the Subsidiaries Group in the
Philippines.

Mr. Tablante holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Industrial Management
Engineering from De La Salle University (DLSU), Manila, Republic of the
Philippines in 1986. He possesses more than 20 years of senior
management experience in hospitality industry.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Tablante was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Ka Ho (8|5 = 5t 4) ("Mr. Lau”), aged 45, joined the Company as
an independent non-executive Director in June 2020. He is also a member
and the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the
audit committee of the Company.

Mr. Lau holds a Master's degree in business administration from The
University of lowa and a Master's degree in corporate governance from
Hong Kong Metropolitan University. He is a fellow member of both The
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The Chartered Governance
Institute. He is also a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors and holds a Diploma in Company Direction.

Mr. Lau has more than 15 years of experience in corporate management,
corporate finance and corporate secretarial areas. Mr. Lau is an executive
director and the company secretary of Gain Plus Holdings Limited (stock
code: 9900). He is also an executive director and the chief executive officer
of Prosperous Future Holdings Limited (“Prosperous Future”) (stock code:
1259).

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Lau was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Cheng Hong Wai (B8EE{Z5E4) (‘Mr. Cheng’), aged 44, joined the
Company as an independent non-executive Director in January 2021. He is
also a member and the chairman of the audit committee and a member of
each of the nomination committee and the remuneration committee of
the Company.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor's Degree of Commerce in Accounting from
Macquarie University in Australia. He is a Hong Kong Certified Public
Accountant and a member of CPA Australia who has over 15 years of
managerial experience in auditing, finance and accounting. Mr. Cheng has
extensive experience in financial and accounting as well as assurance and
advisory services in Hong Kong and Australia, where he has gained
expertise to a range of industries, including financial services, food and
beverage, software houses, hospitality, manufacturing and not-for-profits
organisations. He is also well experienced in internal auditing in various
leading financial institutions, including those related to internal controls
over financial reporting as well as daily operation procedures.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Cheng was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.

Mr. Leung Wai Tai (R/EZ % 4) (‘Mr. Leung’), aged 41, joined the
Company as an independent non-executive Director in June 2023. He is
also a member and a chairman of the nomination committee of the
Company and a member of each of the audit committee and remuneration
committee of the Company.

Mr. Leung obtained a bachelor of arts degree in Accountancy in the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 2003, and obtained his postgraduate degree
in Accounting from the School of Accounting & Finance of Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2006. Mr. Leung is a fellow Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong and the managing director of
Blossoming Certified Public Accountants Limited. He has nearly over 20
years of experience in the accountancy profession. Mr. Leung is an
executive director of Simplicity Holding Limited, the issued shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:8367). He is also an executive
director of Goldway Education Group Limited, the issued shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:8160).

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Leung was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Chun Lam (FRBR5E4) (‘Mr. Chan’), aged 51, joined the
Group in August 2021. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor degree of Business
Administration in Accounting with honors from Hong Kong Baptist
University. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He is also a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chan
worked for an international accounting firm and a number of listed
companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan has over 28 years of professional
experience in auditing, and financial management. He also has extensive
experience in hotel and gaming business.
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The Directors present this annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2023.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is Units 2109-10,
21st Floor, Wing On House, No. 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2023 are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 142 to 143 of
this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 30 June 2023 (for the year ended 30 June 2022: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2023 is set
out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
6 to 18 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales attributable to the Group's largest customer and
five largest customers accounted for approximately 64% (for the year
ended 30 June 2022: 62%) and 75% (for the year ended 30 June 2022: 67%)
respectively of the Group's total revenue for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
were less than 30% of the Group's total purchases for the Year.

At no time during the Year did a Director, a close associate (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of a Director or a Shareholder (which to the knowledge of
the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
has an interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers or customers.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 267 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in Notes 14
and 15 respectively to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES OWNED BY THE GROUP

Particulars of the principal properties of the Group are set out on page 268
of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the Year are
set out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The reserves of the Company available for distribution to the Shareholders
as at 30 June 2023, which is calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands (the “Cayman Islands Companies Law") and the Company’s
Articles of Association, amounted to HKSNil (2022: HKSNIl).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 146 of this annual report and note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

DONATIONS

During the Year, no charitable donations were made by the Group (2022:
HKSNil).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report are
as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Wong Meng (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Ka Ho

Mr. Cheng Hong Wai

Mr. Leung Wai Tai (appointed on 16 June 2023)
Mr. Chung Dan (passed away on 7 April 2023)

Pursuant to article 83(3) of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Leung Wai Tai, who has been appointed with effect from 16 June 2023,
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to article 84 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Ho
Wong Meng and Mr. Lau Ka Ho shall retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM") of the Company and
shall then be eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director
a confirmation of his independence pursuant to the independence
guidelines under the Listing Rules, and considers that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Biographical information of the Directors is set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 19 to
22 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2023, the interests or short positions of the Directors and
chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provision of the SFO) or which were required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or which were required, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 (the “Model Code”), were

ESZNTETBRASREKRM. BERG
RARSF Z AL RR R

RZZB_=FRA=1+H BEEREARREET
BABRARBREBEEE(EEREHFLPE
RBIFEXVED) Z B tn - RO REST - #E
BREZESRBEGIEXVBE7RFESHFAM
SARFNMBRAZ ERmSIAR (BRREZES R
HIERPIE BIEOOR EFRGF R 2 s S0k
B SIREESF RHE RPISE 352 RAR N A
FEZERMZBRIRE  FAREME+FIE
EHBETAESETEARZNRETA((HRE
SADAMEARNRR] LB EmSORRIT ¢

as follows:
Long positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the RAEATROREERAZEHE :
Company:
Number of Shares
ROEE
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Personal Corporate share capital of
Name of Director interest interest Total the Company Note2
HARATE BITRE
EEpns PN £ DR et B "ot wE2
Mr. Ho Wong Meng = 260,000,000 260,000,000 18.99%

Ho Wong Meng 7t 4

Notes:

(1) These Shares were held by Excite Opportunity Fund L.P., an exempted limited
partnership established in accordance with the Exempted Limited Partnership Law
of Cayman Islands, and managed by Excite Investments Holdings Limited (as
general partner) which was wholly-owned by Mr. Ho, an executive Director.

) The percentage is calculated on the basis of 1,369,157,235 Shares in issue as at
30 June 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2023, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had or was deemed to have any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2023, the following persons or corporations (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) were interested in 5% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company which were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO, or to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and the Listing Rules:
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TERRREG. HBRRRDRESFZE
BRRE

RIZZ=FRA=TH BEARFAREESFR
HERPISE 336 (R BAFENRR B LMATR - 3R
B METE GRBIE XVERSE 2 M3 0 B2 IR K
EHRBNARBEHES AR RD EITIRA 5% 3 A
FRENATIEE (EFHARREETHRAR
RSN ZAE

Long positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the REATRGEHEBERG ZFE -
Company:
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Number of share capital of
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest/Capacity Shares held the Company Mete3)
EERATERITRE
REHSE, £ BT 56 AR HHE B E 5 b v
Excite Opportunity Fund LP. Beneficial owner 260,000,000 18999 (Motestand2)
Excite Opportunity Fund LP. ERER A (1 22)
Excite Investments Holdings Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 260,000,000 18999, (Metel
Excite Investments Holdings Limited TP AR 2 S i)
Glorious Future Fund SPC Interest of a controlled corporation 260,000,000 18.99% (Mete?)
Glorious Future Fund SPC SIS A R Z (Hiz2)
AG Investment Management Company Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 260,000,000 18.99% (ore?
AG Investment Management Company Limited Sz VNG S (it2)
Mr.Tang Yuk Fan Interest of a controlled corporation 260,000,000 18.99% More?
Tang Yuk Fan 54 SR NG - 2y (Wi322)
Eriska Investment Fund Ltd Beneficial owner 131,800,000 9.63%
Eriska Investment Fund Ltd ERBBA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Long positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the
Company: (Continued)

Notes:

(1) These Shares were held by Excite Opportunity Fund L.P., an exempted limited
partnership established in accordance with the Exempted Limited Partnership Law
of Cayman Islands, and managed by Excite Investments Holdings Limited (as
general partner). Accordingly, Excite Investments Holdings Limited was deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. under the SFO.

(2) Glorious Future Fund SPC was the limited partner of Excite Opportunity Fund L.P.,
whose management shares were held by AG Investment Management Company
Limited in its capacity as investment manager. AG Investment Management
Company Limited was wholly-owned by Mr. Tang Yuk Fan. Accordingly, each of
Glorious Future Fund SPC, AG Investment Management Company Limited and
Mr. Tang Yuk Fan was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Excite
Opportunity Fund L.P. under the SFO.

(3) The percentage is calculated on the basis of 1,369,157,235 Shares in issue as at
30 June 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2023, the Company had not been
notified by any person or company, other than Directors or chief executives
of the Company whose interests are set out in the section headed
“DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES” in this report, who had
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option Scheme’)
was conditionally adopted by the Shareholders on 1 November 2017 and
became unconditional on 2 November 2017. A summary of the principal
terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives and/or
rewards to eligible participants for their contributions to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the Company.

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The eligible participant(s) of the Share Option Scheme is/are full time or
part time employees of the Group (including any directors, whether
executive or non-executive and whether independent or not, of the
Group); and any business or joint venture partners, contractors, agents or
representatives, consultants, advisers, suppliers, producers or licensors,
customers, licensees (including any sub-licensee) or distributors, landlords
or tenants (including any sub-tenants) of the Group or any person who, in
the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed or may contribute to the
Group.

Maximum number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of the approval of the
Share Option Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each eligible participant or grantee (including exercised
and outstanding options) in any twelve (12)-month period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Time of exercise of options

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, an option may be
exercised in whole or in part at any time during the period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to the grantee thereof at the time
of making an offer provided that such period shall not exceed the period of
ten (10) years from the date of the grant of the particular option but
subject to the provisions for early termination but subject to the early
termination of the Share Option Scheme.

There is no specified minimum period under the Share Option Scheme for
which an option must be held or the performance target which must be
achieved before an option can be exercised under the terms of the Share
Option Scheme.

Acceptance of options

An offer of the grant of an option shall be made to eligible participants in
writing (@and unless so made shall be invalid) in such form as the Board may
from time to time determine and shall remain open for acceptance by the
eligible participant concerned for a period of twenty-one (21) days
inclusive of, from the date upon which it is made provided that no such
offer shall be open for acceptance after the earlier of the date falling 10
years after the adoption date or the termination of the Share Option
Scheme.

A non-refundable nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable by the
grantee upon acceptance of an option. An option shall be deemed to have
been accepted when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the
option duly signed by the eligible participant together with the said
consideration of HK$1.00 is received by the Company.

Exercise price

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme may be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any event will not
be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the offer date, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the closing
prices of the Shares as shown in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five (5) business days immediately preceding the offer
date; and (iii) the nominal value of the Share on the offer date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Duration of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall continue in force for the period
commencing from the adoption date and expiring at the close of business
on the date which falls ten (10) years after the adoption date, after such
period no further options will be granted but the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in respect of any
options granted before its expiry or termination but not yet exercised.

Movements relating to the share options granted during the year ended
30 June 2023 were as follows:
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Number of share options
BRER
Closing
At1July At30June Exercise Vesting price
Capacity Date of grant 2022 Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 2023 Validity period price period  (per share)
R R
kSt -3 it okt 3 W E
af RHEH tA-H ERi iy d BAH B ~A=tH ByE i ol K (8R)
Business partners 4 December 2017 54,766,288 - - - - 54766288 4 December 2017 to HKS1.94 No HKS1.88
3 December 2027
E ZE-tfF **—tﬁ ABAZ  1wETL & 1%%R
+-AmA T-HET-A=H
Advisor 9July 2018 13691572 - - - - 13691572 9 July 2018 to 8 July 2028 HKS1.57 No HKS1.57
B “E)\E Z2-\FtANRE  157%R & 15787
tANA ZZZ\F+ANR
68457860 = = - - 68457860
During the Year, no option of the Company was granted, exercised, F R W HEKXAGEBRECERLE ~ 17(# - #HiT

cancelled or lapsed. As at 30 June 2023, the Company had 68,457,860
accumulated total outstanding share options under the Share Option
Scheme at an exercise price of HK$1.94 and HK$1.57 per Share. Save for the
aforementioned share options, the Company does not have any other
outstanding share option. The total number of shares available for grant by
the Company under the Share Option Scheme was 68,457,863 shares as
1 July 2022 and 30 June 2023, which represents approximately 5% of the
Company's issued shares as at 1 July 2022 and 30 June 2023 and the
number of Shares that may be issued in respect of options and awards
granted under all schemes of the Company during the period of 1 July
2022 to 30 June 2023 (i.e. 68,457,860 Shares under the Share Option
Scheme) divided by the weighted average number of Shares in issue for
the year ended 30 June 2023 (i.e. 1,369,157,235 Shares) is approximately
5%.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, every Director shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which he/she shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of the duty of
his/her office.

The Company has taken out directors’ liability insurance throughout the
year, which provides appropriate cover for the Directors and the directors
of the subsidiaries of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme and the convertible bond as disclosed
in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or the Director's connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the Year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE WITH A
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Save as disclosed, there were no other contracts of significance between
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling Shareholder or
any its subsidiaries subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during
the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no material
breach of non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the
Group that has a significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group.
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CHANGE IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in the

information of the Directors are as follows:

(1) Mr.Chung Dan has passed away on 7 April 2023;

(2)  Mr. Leung Wai Tai has been appointed as the independent non-
executive Director, a member and the chairman of the nomination
committee and a member of each of the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company, all with effect from 16
June 2023.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year, the following Director is considered to have interests in
the business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules,
particulars of which are set out below:
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Name of entity which business
is considered to compete or
likely to compete with the business

Name of Director of the Group
HEBWABELEBMELER
EEnE FARERRECERER

Mr. Ho Wong Meng Frontier Capital Group Limited and
its subsidiary

Frontier Capital Group Limited
REMBAR

Ho Wong Meng %t 4

Description of business of
the entity which is
considered to compete or
likely to compete with the
business of the Group
WRBEAEEMERER
RARERRF2ERZ
EBHE

Gaming

B¥

Nature of interest in
the entity

REERzEZME

Executive chairman and
director

HITESERES

Note: Mr. Ho is interested in 41,443,500 shares of Frontier Capital Group Limited,

representing 15% of the number of issued shares of Frontier Capital Group Limited.

As the Board is independent of the boards of the above-mentioned entities
and the above Director cannot control the Board, the Group is therefore
capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length
from, the business of these entities.

For the year ended 30 June 2023, save as disclosed above and as so far as is
known to the Directors, no Directors or their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

Bfat © Ho %t 4 M Frontier Capital Group Limited Z 41,443,500
BRBROHFPHEEER  BE
Limited 2 21T A {7 15% °

74 Frontier Capital Group
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
and any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or in existence during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company did not have any connected transactions which were
subject to the reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules for the year ended 30 June 2023.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES
During the year ended 30 June 2023, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Full details on the Company's corporate governance practices are set out
on pages 36 to 59 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference
which are in line with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set
out in the Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and the Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2023.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report of annual
results, the Company has maintained the sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the Year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no pre-emptive rights provisions in the Articles of Association of
the Company, or under the Cayman Islands Companies Law, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing
Shareholders.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023
have been audited by BDO Limited who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment in the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

By order of the Board

Ho Wong Meng
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 September 2023
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with the applicable code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code that were in force during the year as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its code of corporate governance
(the "CG Code") except for the deviation from the code provisions which
are explained below.

Code Provision C.2.1

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separated and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. Ho Wong Meng (“Mr. Ho") currently assumes the roles of both the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. The Board believes that vesting
the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person
provides the Company with strong and consistent leadership, allows for
effective and efficient planning and implementation of business decisions
and strategies, and is beneficial to the business prospects and
management of the Group. Although Mr. Ho performs both the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, the division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is clearly established.
These two roles are performed by Mr. Ho distinctly.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct for securities transactions by directors (the “Model
Code").

All Directors have confirmed, following the specific enquiry by the
Company, that they complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 30 June 2023 and up to the date of this report of annual results.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The principal duty of the Board is to ensure that the Company is properly
managed in the interest of the Shareholders.

Composition of the Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises five Directors, of whom two are executive
Directors and three are independent non-executive Directors. The names
of the Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report are
set out below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Ho Wong Meng (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Ka Ho

Mr. Cheng Hong Wai

Mr. Leung Wai Tai (appointed on 16 June 2023)
Mr. Chung Dan (passed away on 7 April 2023)

The Board possesses a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the businesses of the
Group. Biographical information of the Directors and the relationship
among the members of the Board are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this
annual report. Updated list of Directors identifying their role and
function are maintained on the websites of the Stock Exchange at
http://www.hkexnews.hk and the Company at http://www.ientcorp.com.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Chairman and Chief Executive

The Chairman takes primary responsibility for ensuring that good corporate
governance practices and procedures are established, and is responsible
for the management of the Board and ensures that all Directors receive
adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings. The Chief
Executive Officer is primarily responsible for the overall management of the
Group and oversight of the management. The management is responsible
for the day-to-day operations of the Group. The roles and division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
clearly established. In addition, the Company has established the executive
committee, the audit committee, the nomination committee and the
remuneration committee with respective terms of reference to assist the
Board in focusing on specific matters, fulfill their roles and functions
delegated by the Board, and make any necessary recommendations of the
Board.

Presently, Mr. Ho Wong Meng assumes the roles of both the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer. The reasons for the deviation of the code
provision C.2.1 under the CG Code are set out in the section headed
“Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code”.

Board Independence

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited
to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

The Board has established mechanisms to ensure that independent views
are available to the Board. During the Year, the Board also reviewed and
considered the mechanisms in place to ensure independent views and
input are available to the Board. These mechanisms include:

the Board ensures the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors and at least one-third of its members being
independent non-executive Directors (or such higher threshold as
may be required by the Listing Rules from time to time), with at least
one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Further, independent non-executive
Directors will be appointed to Board Committees as required under
the Listing Rules and as far as practicable to ensure independent
views are available;

38 Annual Report £ #§ 2022/23

ERg#E)

IERITHRER
FEAERRREYRGCEE AT RRERNE
EEM REEEHRESY UHRIBES
REEESER =ZBRAEZER RuEEE
SRRy FERSEEOME - TRARE
EHEAEEREETEREREEE - SREA|
BEAEEAELE  TERITRERBNA
EBREBES TRTBEM o toh - ADAE KT
TEEY BHZEE RELZEERFMES
& SHEBREENRYESSE TR TEE -
NETESEBEFRE BB RN  URAE
EeREIMNEEE -

T Ho Wong Meng 50 AE 3R R E 6 R ITERABE 2
BT o RIRMDZEEASFRIAY ST AR C2.1 1§ FT B
i RBERASN [BFEERFR]] —&F o

Exglun
MAEER(BRIFNTESTRBLIFNTES) Y
REZEHRBEZNEEXBLR NBREX
B EMEEFEHMA SR BT ELREE -
BIUFRTEERBNEREZES FHZES
MR ZE SR -

EESCREUMNARRESSHRANRGSE LR
o FR - EFENEHRE R HIERHESIA
HMREFSANESBUBHMER - ZFHHE
SEOE

EFeIRREEEL =RBIUIFNTE
ENEREL =N Z—KERBIUIFNITE
E(HETRANTHRENESARTR)
MEL—ZBUFATEFTABEEERE
1% REFTAEAMEEEFTRME - I
SN RRRF G EMRRZRERRER
ATERA T EEBLFRTEETNAESS
ZE®  UEREUISEZES



International Entertainment Corporation  BIBRIREEA R A A

Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Board Independence (Continued)

the Nomination Committee strictly adheres to the Nomination Policy
(as defined below) and Board Diversity Policy (as defined below) with
regard to the nomination and appointment of independent non-
executive Directors, and is mandated to assess annually the
independence of independent non-executive Directors to ensure
that they can continually exercise independent judgments;

the Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) are
entitled to obtain further information from the management on the
various matters to be discussed at Board meetings and, where
necessary, independent advice from external professional advisers at
the Company’s expense; and

the Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors. The
Company is of the view that all of the independent non-executive
Directors meet the guidelines for assessing independence as set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to be
independent.

The independent non-executive Directors are considered by the Board to
be independent of the management and free of any relationship that
could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent
judgments. The Board considers that each of the independent non-
executive Directors brings his own relevant expertise to the Board and its
deliberations. None of the independent non-executive Directors has any
business or financial interests with the Group nor has any relationship with
other Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Appointment, Re-election and Retirement of the Directors

By virtue of article 83(3) of the Articles of Association of the Company, the
Directors shall have the power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board
or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting
of Shareholders after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In compliance with the code provision in B.2.2 of the CG Code all Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Furthermore, pursuant to the article 84(1) of the Articles of Association of
the Company, at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years.

Each of Mr. Lau Ka Ho, Mr. Cheng Hong Wai and Mr. Leung Wai Tai, who
were appointed as independent non-executive Directors, entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on the date of his appointment and is subject to retirement
by rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

Appropriate liability insurance for the Directors has been arranged for
indemnifying their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Board Meetings

Board meetings are held regularly and at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals to approve, among other things, the
financial results of the Company. Regular Board meetings are scheduled in
advance to give the Directors an opportunity to attend. All Directors are
invited to include matters in the agenda for regular Board meetings. For all
other Board meetings, reasonable notices are given to Directors. Directors
can attend Board meetings either in person or by electronic means of
communication.

If a substantial Shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined to
be material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting
rather than by a written resolution. Independent non-executive Directors
who, have no material interest in the transaction will be present at such
Board meeting.

The company secretary of the Company is responsible for taking minutes
of all Board and Board committee meetings. Draft minutes are circulated to
Board or Board committee members unless a conflict of interest arises and
the final version of minutes are open for inspection by the Directors upon
reasonable notice.

For the year ended 30 June 2023, five Board meetings, one annual general
meeting and one extraordinary general meeting were held.

The external auditor attended the AGM held on 2 December 2022 to
answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence and the Chairman also held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors during the Year.

LEEARE

ERg#E)

$ﬁ*ﬁ%

SEHTHET BEFEELNK HEEFE

T RASE (R rh G ) A DRI - &
%ﬁ* SHOELHE WEEEARELE -
PREERRELMAESeTHeRRRNE
BomEHEmESeeRms - AmESEMH
AEEL  BEABENEBESTRASR LR
BEEeed-

HEBERRAEEREZTER/IEEBNEETF
ENmER MEEZSETBEN AEHEE
HABEREEee2MFBEREREIE - NE
AR ST A EER DB IFNTESHLE

HEFEEH -

ARRZARIMERERTEEEERELER
E%‘%m%&ﬁamuaﬁ SRMEERA (BRER
m ﬁl\)iﬁATJ%i%A&é%’\é,\aﬁkah

EEJ TRLENREBESERNENHES
ER -
BE-_ T = A=tTHIFE B87RHRX
EEgen —AREEFAGER—RBRERR
g o

SNERBELER T -+ A -HETZ
BERBFERGARLNITER - ZBEDRE RO E
EAR @t BREZEMOBE O ERMA -
FR EFENEHEEGBESTEE 2BRTEEL
FMITESRITT —REF -

Annual Report € #§ 2022/23 41



International Entertainment Corporation BIFRIRZ475 R A &)

Corporate Governance Report
TRER/BRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) EEg @)
Board Meetings (Continued) -84 1C-)

Details of the attendance of directors are set out below. The attendance of BB F & 7 FIBEHIWO T - FREFERNRRE
a Director is stated by reference to the number of meetings held during his  ZEMEEM s @ EHEZE LB ETRE

TN

tenure if he was appointed part way during the Year. TZedREMI L -

Number of meetings during the Year

FREZIRE
Attended/Eligible to attend
BHE SEKRLE
Annual Extraordinary
General General
Meeting Meeting
held on held on
Board 2 December 22 May
Meetings 2022 2023

R-ZB-—-F R=-ZT—-=
+=A=H HEA=t+=H
BITHKRR BTHRRE
BEEeed BEXE BRIKE

Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Ho Wong Meng (Chairman of the Board  Ho Wong Meng 5t 4

and Chief Executive Officer) (BEESEEHFTEAER) 5/5 11 11
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante 5t 4 5/5 1/1 171

Independent non-executive Directors B EEHTESE

Mr. Lau Ka Ho BIRFFKE 5/5 11 1/1

Mr. Cheng Hong Wai BB R4 5/5 1/1 1/1

Mr. Leung Wai Tai Mo ZNE IR ofe B (M) 1/1 N/A N/A
T EA T EA

Mr. Chung Dan (et $B R S H (W) 3/3 /1 N/A

T EA
Notes: Kzt -
(1 Mr. Leung Wai Tai was appointed as independent non-executive director on 16 (1) REREER_E_=F A+ NBEZTAEBIIHE
June 2023. BiTESE -
(2)  Mr.Chung Dan passed away on 7 April 2023. Q EBREENR-ZZT-=FMA LA -
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Newly appointed Directors are provided with induction training. Each of
them will receive a Director’s Handbook which contains the terms of
reference of the Board’s committees, the information on the duties and
responsibilities of directors under statutory regulations and the Listing
Rules, and other information on corporate governance matters. They will
also receive the materials on the operations and business of the Group.

The Directors should participate in continuing professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company
has provided the Directors with the monthly updates on the Group's
performance, position and prospects, and the latest development of the
Listing Rules, and the relevant laws, rules and regulations relating to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

All Directors have provided the Company with their training records for the
year ended 30 June 2023 and all of them had participated in continuing
professional development activities by attending the training courses,
seminars, workshops and/or training on corporate governance, regulatory
development or other relevant topics during the year ended 30 June 2023.

For the year ended 30 June 2023, the Directors have participated in the
following continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills:

HITES
Ho Wong Meng 7t 4

Executive Directors
Mr. Ho Wong Meng
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante

Independent non-executive Directors BIFHITES
Mr. Lau Ka Ho BARZHE
Mr. Cheng Hong Wai BER{Z S A&
Mr. Leung Wai Tai BRI A

Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante 4& 4

TREGHRE

ARRFHEERER

MR TEFHEREAREI - SLEFHKE
EETRTH ETFHAEZTCRE e RESR
CBERREERRETRAT ZBEER -
ARCEEREEHRBZEMER - RET K
NEBARE EEREBH -

EER2ESBEXERUBRITHENZR
Wi MREBBEABEAMRIAMENER
THEFSFELER - AARIEEARESREM
BRAAKREZRR HREMBZEFER I
RUEBALEMARAAMEEE BERETHAH
ZHRRRAR  RAIRMRO 2 S BERBN

EREFHERAARARERENBE_ZT =
FRAZTHLEFEMEZFIIZER - BEZ
TE_=FRA=THULEFE FFHEL2EEE
BEXEREY BRLFEIRE  Hiag T
ET R,/ RBEREEER AR BERIEMA
B AR 2 A o

BE_ZT_=-F/ A=1TBHLHFE EFC2H
THREERER  AERREFREFZNEN
e

Type of continuous professional development

FEEXBRER
Attending seminars or Reading materials
giving talks relevant to the
of seminars/webinars/  directors’ duties and
conference/forums responsibilities
HEBERERNE
HEmNg '8 FHRESHER
i E B REAE BEZREMH
= v
= v
4 v
v v
v v
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BOARD COMMITTEE
Executive Committee

The executive committee of the Company (the “Executive Committee’)
comprises two executive Directors as at the date of this annual report,
namely Mr. Ho Wong Meng (Chairman of the Executive Committee) and
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon Tablante.

The primary duties of the Executive Committee are, inter alia, to advise the
Board in formulating policies in relation to the business operations of the
Group, supervise the management to implement the policies laid down by
the Board, make recommendations to the Board as to the Group's business
plans, and oversee the management and the daily operations of the Group.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee in compliance with
Listing Rules and written terms of reference in compliance with code
provision D.3.3 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

As at the date of this annual report, the audit committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”) comprises all three independent non-executive
Directors namely, Mr. Cheng Hong Wai (Chairman of the Audit Committee),
Mr. Lau Ka Ho and Mr. Leung Wai Tai, with written terms of reference which
are available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the website of the
Company. At least one of the members of the Audit Committee possesses
appropriate professional accounting qualification as defined under the
Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are, inter alia, to oversee the
relationship with the external auditor, to review the financial information of
the Group, and to review and supervise the financial reporting process,
internal controls and risk management functions of the Group.

The Audit Committee also met with the external auditor not less than twice
to discuss the financial reporting process and internal controls of the Group
during the Year and had reviewed the interim report of the Company for
the six months ended 31 December 2022 and the annual report of the
Company for the year ended 30 June 2022. The Audit Committee also
received the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board the re-appointment

of BDO Limited as the Company’s external auditor subject to the
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

During the Year, the Audit Committee held four meetings to review the
financial reporting process, internal controls and risk management systems
of the Group, the effectiveness of the internal audit function of the Group,
the Company’s reports and accounts including the interim and annual
results of the Group, the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and provide advice and recommendations to the Board.

The attendance records of the members of the Audit Committee are set
out below:

Members of the Audit Committee

EREEENE

Mr. Cheng Hong Wai (Chairman) BB (E)
Mr. Lau Ka Ho BN

Mr. Leung Wai Tai Mete? BTt e (Wi 1)
Mr. Chung Dan "2 4% % 4 A (Wi2)
Notes:

(1) Mr. Leung Wai Tai was appointed as a member of Audit Committee on 16 June
2023.

) Mr. Chung Dan passed away on 7 April 2023.
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Committee meetings Attended/
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee in compliance
with Listing Rules and written terms of reference in compliance with code
provision B.3.1 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) comprises two independent non-executive Directors and
one executive Director as at the date of this annual report, namely
Mr. Leung Wai Tai (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Cheng
Hong Wai and Mr. Ho Wong Meng, with written terms of reference which
are available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the website of the
Company.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are, inter alia, to review
the structure, size and the composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
to the Board on any proposed changes to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships; to assess the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors; to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman,
the managing Director or the Chief Executive of the Company; and to
nominate and recommend candidates to fill a casual vacancy on the Board
for the Board's approval.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy") setting out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board. Under the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee is
responsible to assess the appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge,
expertise and diversity (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural/
educational background, or professional experience) required on the Board
based on current and projected future activities of the Group, and the
extent to which the required skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and
diversity are represented on the Board; to oversee the Board succession to
maintain an appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and
diversity on the Board; to propose to the Board the measurable objectives;
and to review the Board Diversity Policy and discuss any required changes
with the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Board Diversity Policy (Continued)

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company believes increasing diversity at the Board level as an important
element in achieving its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development.

When determining the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of perspectives including, but not limited to,
gender, age, culture and educational background, ethnicity, skills,
language, background, education knowledge, industry experience and
professional experience. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board has actively identified individuals that are suitable and qualified
to become Board members to fulfill the Board Diversity Policy and enhance
gender diversity on the Board. As to develop a pipeline of potential
successors for the Board, the Company will also proactively provide internal
trainings to our senior managements and will take into account the factor
of gender diversity when accessing suitable candidates for our senior
management in the future.

The Company may also engage with recruitment agencies to identify
potential successors for the Board and enhance gender diversity in the
coming years, if necessary.

As at 30 June 2023, the Board comprised five male Directors, and the
percentage of male and female employees of the Group are approximately
62.1% and 37.9% respectively. While the Board has a domination of male
composition, the Company will be appointed at least one female director
on or before 31 December 2024 to achieve a female representation in the
Board in compliance with Listing Rules.

The Board considers that the Group’s workforce (including Directors) are
diverse in terms of gender. The Group will continue to apply the principle
of appointments based on merits with reference to the Board Diversity
Policy as a whole, and we have also taken, and will continue to take steps
to promote gender diversity at all levels of our Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy which sets out the following
nomination procedures, criteria and process in the nomination and

appointment of Directors (the “Nomination Policy”).

I. Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following criteria in
evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships:

(i) Characteristics of individual director
Integrity and accountability
Informed judgment
Prudence and maturity

Principled and professional

Other characteristics as the Nomination Committee

deems appropriate

(i) Competencies in the following areas to ensure the Board's

overall suitability
Accounting and finance
Law
Industry knowledge

Marketing

Other competencies as the Nomination Committee

deems appropriate

The Nomination Committee shall also consider:

the structure, size and composition of the Board;

the appropriate mix of competencies between Directors to
enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities effectively;

the appropriate balance of skills, experience, knowledge,

expertise and diversity of the Board is maintained, and the
Board Diversity Policy adopted by the Board is followed;

the capability of the candidate to devote the necessary time

and commitment to the role; and

the potential conflicts of interest, and independence.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

Nomination Policy (Continued)

I.

Selection Criteria (Continued)

If more than one candidate are nominated by the Nomination
Committee, the Nomination Committee shall base on the criteria
and recommend the most competent candidate to the Board. The
Nomination Committee shall also consider the number of board
positions they hold in other firms. After the Nomination Committee
reviewed and considered the candidates, the Nomination
Committee makes recommendations to the Board on any proposed
changes to implement the Company’s corporate strategy. Detailed
background information in relation to potential candidate should be
provided to all Directors for consideration. An offer of a director
appointment must be made by the Board’s approval, with any
recommendations from the Nomination Committee having been
circulated to all Director. The new director shall sign a consent letter
to act as a Director.

Nomination Procedures

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and
the Listing Rules, (i) every Director should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years, all retiring Directors shall
be eligible for re-election at each AGM; and (ii) any Director
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next general
meeting of the Company, the retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election at the general meeting of the Company.

For those who offered themselves for re-election at the AGM or the
other general meetings of the Company, the Nomination Committee
shall take into account the fulfillment of duties, contribution, and
attendance of Board meetings and general meetings. The
Nomination Committee shall also access whether the retiring
Directors continue to meet the criteria. After the Nomination
Committee reviewed and considered the retiring Directors who offer
themselves for re-election, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board.

Based on the recommendations made by the Nomination
Committee, the Board shall make recommendations to the
Shareholders on the retiring Directors standing for re-election at the
AGM or other general meetings of the Company, and provide
available biographical information of the retiring Directors in
accordance with the requirements under the Listing Rules to enable
the Shareholders to make informed decision on the re-election of
such retiring Directors at the AGM or other general meetings of the
Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Nomination Policy (Continued)

2. Nomination Procedures (Continued)

The Nomination Committee considers that all Board members
possess the relevant skills and knowledge in the area of the business
operations of the Group with several of them also possess
professional qualifications. The Nomination Committee considers
that an appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise
and diversity on the Board is maintained and therefore no
measurable objectives were proposed to the Board.

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting, (i) to review the structure, size and composition of the Board; to
assess the appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and
diversity on the Board; (ii) to review the Board Diversity Policy and monitor
its implementation; (iii) to review the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors; and (iv) to consider the qualifications of the
retiring Directors standing for election at the annual general meeting of
the Company.

The attendance records of the members of the Nomination Committee are

set out below:

Members of the Nomination Committee
REZEERE

Mr. Ho Wong Meng Ho Wong Meng 7& 4

Mr. Cheng Hong Wai HERERE
Mr. Leung Wai Tai (fe? P B IR L H (i)
Mr. Chung Dan "2 $E R e A (Wit2)

Notes:

Q)] Mr. Leung Wai Tai was appointed as a member and the chairman of the
Nomination Committee on 16 June 2023.

) Mr. Chung Dan passed away on 7 April 2023.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee in compliance
with Listing Rules and written terms of reference in compliance with code
provision E.1.2 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

As at the date of this annual report, the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “"Remuneration Committee’) comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Ka Ho (Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Cheng Hong Wai and Mr. Leung Wai
Tai, with written terms of reference which are available on the website of
the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are, inter alia, to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company'’s policy and structure for
all remuneration of the Directors and the senior management of the Group
and on the establishment of a formal, transparent procedure for
developing the remuneration policy and to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
the senior management of the Group, and the remuneration of the
non-executive Directors and to review and/or approve matters relating to
shares schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The remuneration of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group is based on the performance and experience of individuals and is
determined with reference to the Group’s performance, the remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Remuneration Committee held
one meeting to review the remuneration policy of the Company and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the Directors and
the senior management of the Group.

The attendance records of the members of the Remuneration Committee
are set out below:

Members of the Remuneration Committee

LEEARE

EETEET@)

FWEES

ARAIERE FTRBRIEMEE S - Wikt
TR B 8% 14 B8 2 > 2B AP AP BIIESCEBE D 2
RE IR ST Em B S E

RAFREY  ARAFHEES((FHEESE])
B =RBIIFMITE AR - BB S 58 4 (F
ZEeTF) TRELLENREREE  HER
BESEFHNBIPAEERARRIREE

FMEREE T BRAR(EPEE)IARAE
BEZLAEESREEAB 2 HMBR AR -
AR BHIFIERFMBR c ERMABHE 212
FREFESRMEZ  KRENNTES AL
ESRERABZHMORARIFENTEZZH
M=t e R ENR SHtE ETRA
F1I7EETARRNAEINER -

EERAEESRERAB ZHHMOBREREAR
ARG WRB2EAKEEE  ERFMER
REFTRERE

REBE_Z_=FA=1THLFE HFMES
ERBRITREE  UEHARR 2 FHECR -
AEHEERAEEGREBEAE2FMRES

SRR o

HFEZE S E 2 HECEHINT

Committee meeting Attended/
Eligible to Attend

FHEEERE BHE HEER
HEZESSR

Mr. Lau Ka Ho (Chairman) NREEE(FE) /1
Mr. Cheng Hong Wai EERIZ S A4 1
Mr. Leung Wai Taij Mete?) SPAEFR A M (1) N/A
TEA

Mr. Chung Dan "t 48 K e A (Wir2) 11

Notes:

(1) Mr. Leung Wai Tai was appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee
on 16 June 2023.

) Mr. Chung Dan passed away on 7 April 2023.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

(i)  to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations from time to
time;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the Group;

(i)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  todevelop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the Directors and the employees of the
Group; and

(v)  to review the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Li Wing Wah resigned as the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”’) on 4 August 2023.

On 4 August 2023, Mr. Wong Wing Kit has been appointed as the Company
Secretary in place of Ms. Li.

The primary corporate contact person of the Company is Mr. Ho Wong
Meng, an executive Director. Each of Ms. Li and Mr. Wong confirmed that
she/he has received 15 hours professional training under the requirement
of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the Year under review.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2023. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and include the
applicable disclosures required by the Listing Rules and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, with
regard to their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report”
in this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2023, the remuneration in relation to audit
services paid or payable to the auditors of the Company and its subsidiaries
was HK$1,730,000 and HK$287,000 respectively and the remuneration in
relation to non-audit services (including agreed-upon procedures on
interim results and other non-audit services) paid or payable to the auditor
of the Company and its affiliated firm was HK$210,000.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY AND
WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has established the (i) policy and measures to support anti-
corruption laws and regulations; and (i) Whistleblowing Policy and
measures for employees, suppliers and business partners to raise serious
concerns, in confidence and anonymity, with the Board about possible
improprieties in financial report or other matters of the Group. These
polities can promote high probity standards and ethical business practices.

Further details of the Group's Anti-Corruption Policy and Whistleblowing
Policy, please refer to the Company's website.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration, payment and amount of the dividends will be subject to
be discretion of the Directors and will be dependent upon the Company's
earning financial condition, cash requirements and availability, the
provisions of relevant laws and all other relevant factors.
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TRER/RE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and for reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems
are established in order to carry on the business of the entity in an orderly
and efficient manner, ensure adherence to management policies,
safeguard the assets, secure as far as possible the completeness and
accuracy of records, and identify potential risks so as to manage the
identified risks, undertake the measures to mitigate the potential effects of
any misstatement or loss arising from such identified risks. The
management of the Group is responsible to identify the potential risks. The
identified risks would then be assessed for the likelihood and impact on
the financial, operational and compliance of the Group. The management
of the Group would undertake relevant measures to mitigate the potential
effects of any misstatement or loss arising from such identified risks. The
identified risks would also be reported to the Directors and disclosed the
significant risks in this annual report. In addition, the Group has adopted a
policy to handle and disseminate the inside information of the Group,
which was designed based on “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” issued by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong
Kong.

During the Year, the Board conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group through the
internal audit function of the Group. The Group engaged an independent
firm to perform the internal audit function to carry out the review on the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The review
covered the controls over the financial, operational and compliance of the
Group. The internal audit function of the Group considered the scale of
operations of the Group and resources available and its review was based
on tests of controls, inspection of the related documents and discussion
with the relevant personnel of the Group.

After the internal audit function conducted the review, the internal audit
function submitted its review report to the Audit Committee with the key
audit findings and recommendations to improve the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group which were also presented at the
Board meeting. The internal audit function concluded that no significant
deficiency in the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group was found during the review.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

In addition, the management of the Group has provided a confirmation to
the Board on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. Having considered the review report prepared by
the internal audit function of the Group and the confirmation on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group provided by the management of the Group, the Board considered
that the existing risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are effective and adequate.

The Board also reviewed, and was satisfied with, the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of the staff of the Group's accounting and
financial reporting function, and the training programmes and budget of
the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is committed to maintain an on-going and open dialogue with
current and prospective, and both individual and institutional shareholders
of the Company. A shareholders’ communication policy (the
“Shareholders Communication Policy”) was adopted throughout the
Year pursuant to the CG Code which aims at establishing two-way
relationship and communication between the Company and its
Shareholders. The Board shall review it on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness.

In summary, the Shareholders Communication Policy set out the provisions
with the objective of ensuring that the Shareholders are provided with
ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company in order to promote effective
communication with the Shareholders so as to enable them to engage
actively with the Company and exercise their rights as Shareholder in an
informed manner. The Shareholders Communication Policy is available on
the Company’s website (http://www.ientcorp.com) and set out the
maintenance of an effective ongoing communication with the
Shareholders.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(Continued)

The Board strives to encourage and maintain constant dialogue with its
shareholders through various means includes: (i) financial reports and other
corporate communications. The publication of the financial reports (interim
and annual reports) and other corporate communications including but
not limited to announcements, circulars, notices, proxy forms and other
regulatory disclosure will be provided to Shareholders in accordance with
the Listing Rules and any other relevant laws and regulations to facilitate
Shareholders’ understanding; (ii) Shareholders’ meetings. (i.e. annual
general meeting, extraordinary general meeting or any other Shareholders’
meetings); and the members of the Board, in particular, either the chairmen
of Board committees or their delegates, appropriate management
executives will attend annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’
questions in normal circumstances; and (iii) Company’s Website. The
availability of latest information of the Group on the Company's website
which is an effective communication platform to the shareholders and the
investors as well as the general public.

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency
and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information
to its shareholders and investors and discloses information in compliance
with the Listing Rules, and publishes periodic reports and announcements
to the public in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the Shareholders Communication Policy for enhancing the
investors relations, and the investors understanding of the Group's business
performance and strategies.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association and applicable legislation and regulations.

1. Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition sent
to the Board or the Company Secretary at the address of the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong to require an
extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM") to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition, and
an EGM shall be held within two (2) months after the date of the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of the date
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene an EGM, the
Shareholder(s) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by such Shareholder(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board to convene an EGM shall be reimbursed by the Company
to such Shareholder(s).

2. The written requisition must state the purposes of requisitioning the
EGM, and be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may
consist of several documents in like form, each to be signed by such
Shareholders or any one of them.

3. If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders. On the
contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the Shareholder(s) concerned
will be advised of the invalidity and accordingly, an EGM will not be
convened.

4. An EGM must be called by written notice of not less than fourteen
(14) clear days and not less than ten (10) clear business days but if
permitted by the Listing Rules, an EGM may be called by shorter
notice, subject to the applicable laws, if it is so agreed by a majority
in number of the Shareholders having the right to attend and vote at
the EGM, being a majority together representing not less than ninety
five per cent. (95%) of the total voting rights of all Shareholders
having a right to attend and vote at the general meeting of the
Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director

Pursuant to article 83(2) of the Articles of Association, subject to the Articles
of Association and the applicable law, the company may by ordinary
resolution elect any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or
as an additional Director.

Pursuant to article 85 of Articles of Association, no person other than a
retiring Director shall, unless recommended by the Directors for election,
be eligible for election as a Director at any general meeting unless a notice
signed by a member (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified
to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his
intention to propose such person for election and also a notice signed by
the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the head office or at the registration office provided that the
minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s) are given, shall
be at least seven (7) days and that (if the notices are submitted after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election)
the period for lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the day after
the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group to be discussed at
Shareholders’ meeting. There is no provision allowing Shareholders to
make proposals or move resolutions at the general meetings under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands other than to
propose a person for election as a director. Shareholders who wish to make
proposals or move a resolution may, however, follow the procedures set
out in the paragraph headed “Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company” under the section of
“Corporate Governance Report” of this Report written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary to convene an extraordinary general
meeting for putting forward proposals at the Company’s head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong, presently at Units 2109-10, 21st
Floor, Wing On House, No. 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders who have enquires about the above procedures or other
enquires relating to written requisition for an EGM may write to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong.

AMENDMENT OF THE COMPANY’S
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There have been no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 30 June 2023. The consolidated version of the
Memorandum of Association of the Company and the Articles of
Association of the Company is available on the website of the Stock
Exchange and the website of the Company.
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INTRODUCTION

International Entertainment Corporation (the “Company’, and
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) were principally involved
in hotel operations, leasing of properties equipped with
entertainment equipment and participating in the gaming operation
at the hotel complex of the Group in Metro Manila in the Philippines
and live poker events in Macau. The Group strives to maximise
shareholder returns, which is one of the key elements to reinforce
the foundation of the Group for long-term development and
success. This is achieved not only through enhancing the Group'’s
financial strength, but also by fulfilling its corporate social
responsibility.

The Group believes sustainability is the key to success and has
integrated this concept into its business strategy. In order to pursue
a sustainable business model, the Group has adopted the principles
of sustainable development at operational levels, integrated
environmental, social and governance ("ESG") aspects into its
management system and taken corresponding measures in its
governance perspective.

ABOUT THE ESG REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report (‘ESG Report”)
summarises the ESG initiatives, plans and performances of the Group
and demonstrates its commitment to sustainable development.

2.1 Reporting Period

This ESG Report covers the year ended 30 June 2023 (“2023"
or the “Reporting Period").
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2. ABOUT THE ESG REPORT (Continued)

2.2

2.3

24

Reporting Boundary

The reporting boundary is determined based on the revenue
contribution of the operations under the Group’s direct
operational control throughout the Reporting Period. The
reporting boundary of this ESG Report is consistent with that
of the ESG Report for the year ended 30 June 2022 ("2022").
The reporting boundary includes the Group'’s head office in
Hong Kong and the Group's operations in the Philippines and
Macau.

This year, we have included the environmental performance
of the Hong Kong head office in the Report, providing both
the Board and the management with a more comprehensive
data reference. This inclusion enables them to examine the
ESG performance of each operation, identify strengths and
weaknesses, and receive support in formulating future ESG
strategies and setting specific goals, this will effectively
accelerate the Group's transition towards green operations.
Therefore, the environmental data coverage of the 2023 ESG
Report encompasses all main operations of the Group with
direct operational control, leading to variations in data
compared to the 2022 ESG Report.

Reporting Framework

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide ("ESG
Reporting Guide”) in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

Further Information

Your feedback will help the Group to continuously improve its
ESG work and performance. If you have any questions and/or
suggestions regarding this ESG Report and/or the Group's ESG
work, please communicate with the Group via email to
enquiry@ientcorp.com.
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Group has adopted the following reporting principles, namely
materiality, quantitative, consistency and balance in the preparation
of the ESG Report.

Materiality: The Group determines the impact of various ESG issues
on the Group’s operations and its stakeholders through survey.
Based on the results of the stakeholder engagement and materiality
assessment survey, the Group identifies material ESG issues and
determines the appropriate management approach and strategy.

For further details, please refer to the sections headed
"STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT" and “MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT".

Quantitative: The Group has established internal guidelines and
procedures with reference to industry practices, guidelines of the
Stock Exchange or relevant government departments, as well as laws
and regulations, to collect environmental and social performance
data from various business departments, and to keep relevant
monitoring instrument records and supporting documents. Please
refer to the relevant sections in the ESG Report for the standards,
methodologies and assumptions (where applicable) for the
calculation of performance data.

Consistency: Where feasible, the Group uses consistent statistical
methods to collect ESG data, and the same conversion methods are
used. Relevant historical data has been disclosed in this ESG Report.
If there are any changes that may affect comparison with previous
reports, the Group will add remarks to the corresponding content of
the ESG Report.

Balance: The Group upholds this reporting principle to compile the
Report and highlights both achievement and improvement areas of
our ESG management to unbiasedly disclose the environmental and
social performances in the Reporting Period with the support of
pictures, charts and presentation formats whenever appropriate to
present objective and transparent information and data for readers
to make sound decisions and judgments.
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MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD
Dear Valued Stakeholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present our
annual ESG report, which reflects our unwavering commitment to
environmental, social, and governance issues. We recognize the
significance of ESG considerations in driving sustainable business
practices, long-term success, and positive impact in the communities
we serve.

Oversight of ESG matters is a key responsibility of the Board. We
actively engage in discussions, decision-making, and governance
processes to ensure that ESG issues are integrated into our strategic
direction. By providing guidance and oversight, we foster a culture
that values and prioritizes ESG considerations throughout our
organization. Our ESG management approach is underpinned by a
robust and iterative process. We evaluate, prioritize, and manage
material ESG-related issues, including risks to our businesses, through
a systematic and structured framework. We engage with
stakeholders to understand their concerns and align our strategy
accordingly. This approach allows us to identify opportunities,
mitigate risks, and enhance our overall ESG performance (please
refer to the sections headed “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE",
“STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT” and “MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT" for
details).

In order to gain a deeper understanding of stakeholders’
expectations of the Group's sustainable development, the Group will
further strengthen its communication with stakeholders and
formulate relevant sustainable development policies and measures
with reference to their opinions to enhance the Group’s ESG
performance. The Group recognises the importance of setting
targets for its ESG performance. Therefore, the Group has set targets
for ESG issues that are material to the Group. The Board and the
senior management use the data collected to compare the Group's
performance in different years to track the progress of ESG targets.
To strive to achieve these targets, the Group implements different
environmental protection measures and raises employees’
awareness of ESG. Setting ESG targets can help raise the employees’
awareness of sustainable development and enhance the Group's
ESG performance to meet the expectations of the Group's
stakeholders. Also, regular reporting and updates from management
enable us to assess the efficacy of our initiatives, track our progress,
and make informed decisions to drive continuous improvement.
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MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD (Continued)

We believe that transparent reporting is essential for accountability
and building trust with our stakeholders. By sharing our progress,
achievements, and challenges, we demonstrate our commitment to
responsible and sustainable business practices.

As the Board of Directors, we are fully dedicated to upholding our
ESG commitments and fostering a culture of responsible corporate
citizenship. We recognize the importance of ESG integration in
driving long-term value creation and positive societal impact.
Together with our management team and employees, we will
continue to prioritize ESG issues, set ambitious goals, and work
towards building a better future for all.

As last, | would like to express my gratitude to my fellow directors,
the management team and all employees for their contributions to
the Group's sustainable development. | would also like to thank all
stakeholders for their prolonged care and support. In the future, the
Group will continue to improve its governance and transparency,
provide quality services and focus on efficient use of resources so as
to fulfil corporate social responsibility and pursue a sustainable
future.

By order of the Board

International Entertainment Corporation

Ho Wong Meng

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group places a strong emphasis on maintaining robust
corporate governance practices to ensure the long-term
sustainability and success of our business. Our commitment to
effective risk management and internal controls is a cornerstone of
our corporate governance framework. We recognize that effective
governance, risk management, and internal control practices are
essential for building trust, protecting shareholder interests, and
creating value for all stakeholders.

The Board of Directors plays a crucial role in providing oversight and
ensuring the effectiveness of our risk management, internal control
practices and sustainable development of the Group. The Board is
committed to upholding high standards of corporate governance
and actively monitors the implementation and performance of our
internal control system and ESG practices.
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R HERERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Continued)

The senior management has adequate knowledge of ESG and they
are familiar with the activities of different business units. They are
responsible for supervising the Group’s ESG measures, collecting and
analysing ESG data, giving suggestions to the Board on ESG issues,
reviewing ESG-related matters and promoting company-wide
awareness of ESG issues. With the assistance of the senior
management, the Board oversees ESG issues, reviews progress made
against ESG-related targets and continuously evaluates and monitors
the Group's ESG performance, risk and opportunities. The senior
management regularly holds meetings to discuss the effectiveness
of the Group’s policies and procedures and seek opportunities to
improve the Group's ESG performance. The senior management
reports its findings to the Board where appropriate so that the Board
can find solutions to manage the Group’s ESG risks and
opportunities.
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ESG Governance Structure

ESG E5% 18

The Board

- Ultimate responsibility for overseeing the
company's ESG management and disclosure
- Promote a culture of sustainable development

from top to bottom

- Setting ESG Strategy and Policy Development
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- Risk and Opportunity Oversight

« Reporting and Disclosure

Senior Management MEEE
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- Implementing the ESG strategy set by the Board
« Performance Monitoring

- Data Collection and Reporting to the Board
- Ensure effectiveness of the Groups'internal control system ~ «

- Collaboration with th

3oard

« Promoting company-wide awareness of ESG issues

Operations
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Continued)

A robust internal control system plays a vital role in driving
sustainable development and enhancing our ESG performance. By
aligning our internal control practices with sustainability objectives,
we can effectively manage risks, foster operational efficiency, ensure
compliance, and create long-term value for all stakeholders. Our
commitment to the following five objectives — validation, accuracy,
completeness, physical security, and maintenance — within our
internal control system directly contributes to our sustainable
development efforts and ESG reporting.
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Basic Objectives of the Group’s Internal Control System
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Completeness FT& it

Ensure proper summarization of
information and proper preparation of
internal and external reports
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Physical Security EZ %
Limit access to both company
and customer assets,
including data
REIARMEFEE
(BIEEE) nFEER

Maintenance #t

Regular reviews, updates, and
enhancements to our controls, policies
and procedures to enable us to adapt to
changing regulatory requirements and
emerging sustainability risks
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Validation B35

Ensure the integrity of the
information disclosed in
our ESG report
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Accuracy EREME

Ensure that data is recorded
correctly and reflects

the true state of affairs
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Continued)

Validation: By validating the accuracy and reliability of our data and
information, we ensure the integrity of our ESG reporting. Robust
validation processes help us identify and correct any inaccuracies,
enabling us to report transparently on our environmental impact,
social initiatives, and governance practices. Accurate data provides a
solid foundation for decision-making, enabling us to set meaningful
sustainability goals and track our progress over time.

Accuracy: We place great emphasis on maintaining accurate
records and information. This objective involves establishing controls
and procedures to ensure that data is recorded correctly and reflects
the true state of affairs. We employ various mechanisms, such as
regular reconciliations, segregation of duties, approval process, to
minimize inaccuracies and enhance the reliability of our financial and
operational reporting, including ESG report. By maintaining accurate
records and information, we enhance our credibility and
demonstrate our commitment to transparent reporting. Accurate
reporting allows us to showcase our achievements, address areas for
improvement, and align our sustainability efforts with industry
standards and best practices.

Completeness: A comprehensive internal control system helps us
capture and report all relevant ESG information, ensuring our
stakeholders have a complete picture of our sustainability
performance. By implementing controls and processes that promote
data completeness, we can accurately measure and report on our
environmental footprint, social impact, and governance practices.
This enables us to identify areas for improvement, showcase our
successes, and engage with stakeholders in a meaningful dialogue.
Besides, completeness can also enhance the reliability of our
information that made use by the Group itself and also external
stakeholders like investor and shareholder, in the decision-making
processes, and reduce the risk of making uninformed or incomplete
judgments.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Continued)

Physical Security: We recognize the importance of safeguarding
the physical assets of the Group and our customer, including data,
facilities, and equipment. We implement security measures at
different operating locations, such as access controls and surveillance
systems to protect these assets from unauthorized access, theft,
damage, or loss and safeguard critical information, prevent data
breaches, and protect confidential data.

Maintenance: Ongoing maintenance of our internal control system
is essential for sustainable development and effective ESG reporting.
Regular reviews, updates, and enhancements to our controls,
policies and procedures to enable us to adapt to changing
regulatory requirements and emerging sustainability risks. By
continually improving our internal control system, we enhance our
ability to identify, assess, and mitigate sustainability-related risks,
while ensuring the accuracy and reliability of our ESG reports.

By adhering to strong corporate governance principles and
maintaining effective risk management and internal control
practices, we strive to create a foundation of trust and transparency
for our stakeholders. We are committed to continuously improving
our governance practices to meet evolving regulatory requirements
and best-in-class standards, while enhancing the long-term value
creation for our shareholders and the sustainable growth of our
business.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values its stakeholders and their feedback regarding its
businesses and ESG performance. To better understand and address
their concerns and expectations, the Group has maintained close
communication with its key stakeholders on a regular basis through
various channels. By gathering their opinions and understanding
their concerns, the Group can refine its policies and approaches on
ESG management, determine a more suitable way to address the
ESG issues, and make continuous improvements in the Group's ESG
performance.

The following table summarises stakeholders’ key communication
channels and their concerns and expectations. While the Group was
managing all ESG affairs which affect its businesses and stakeholders,
it identified the material issues in each sector of its business. The
materiality of these issues is identified through stakeholder
engagement exercises, management reviews and industry analysis.

Stakeholders
H0E

Key Communication Channels
TEEBERE
Shareholders/investors General meetings

Annual financial reports
Announcements and notices
Company website

R/ REE BERERXE
FREMBHRE
PSSR

YNGIE I

Hotel guests Customer service
Customer hotline and email

Customer satisfaction survey

BEER PR
BEFREMEE
BEmEERE
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Concerns and Expectations

BrzEERE

Financial performance

Sustainable business development
Environmental responsibility
Accurate, complete and timely information
disclosure

Shareholders’ rights and interest
Corporate governance

BB IE R

AIREEBER

RIREMT

SEREERE B KE
PRER M 2

EER

Customers' satisfaction
Protection of customers' privacy
Environmental responsibility
Hotel safety and security
Complaint management
Emergency response
BEEmEE

REE PR
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued) 6. FRERHE(E)

Concerns and Expectations

BMiEzERERYE

Stakeholders Key Communication Channels

BH0E FEREERE

Employees

7l
i

Suppliers

HIEm

Communities/
Non-governmental
organisations

it FEBUFAR

Regular performance appraisals
Frequent meetings
Training programs

EHIRIRT A
BREEH

IR

Business meetings
Order/contract execution
Tele-conferences

E A
TEIE/BUEH

Sl
B AR &= A

Donations and support to the
community

ESG reports

At E R B R KR R

R B REARE

Career development
Occupational health and safety
Remuneration and benefits
Diversity and equal opportunity
BEUR

BE@EEzs

i Koz A

ST Ege

Corporate contribution
Product quality

Fair and open procurement
Stable relationship
EEER

EmEE

N R AR

e BE

Contribution to society
Environmental responsibility
Compliance with laws and regulations
HeaR

REEME

ETIAREAR
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6. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued) 6. FREDHE (&)
6.1 Materiality Assessment 6.1 EEMIM

The management and employees who are responsible for the EEERBEASEFTERENES
key functions of the Group have assisted the Group to review EmASERFHEE - #AER
its operations, identify key ESG issues and assess the R -HekErzENTmEEY
importance of these issues to its businesses and stakeholders. HEBRFOEMNEEN - 1o &
We also engaged with a third parties ESG consultant in MEE=FTHNIRE L8 LREREM
assisting on carrying out the ESG issues benchmarking AE ETTRE HEeRERER
exercise with the international ESG disclosure framework, such MEERTFE 2BEBRE 2k
as SASB, in order to understand the latest megatrends of the BRI ENELR - AASASB © LA T R B
market that may have impacts on our operations. B EEEFENT SR8
The stakeholder opinions are important consideration for the BEHENEREAEEAEEBRMA
Group in adjusting its business and sustainable development BREEREFBRALTIGRE H£8K&
strategies and also evaluating the effectiveness of our ESG ERWBEIENINEEEE - 546
disclosure efforts. This year, the Group has conducted the AEFHEEE - ES - HER B
materiality assessment with stakeholders like management, EERER/FNEETTEE T
employees, suppliers and hotel guests in order to understand AT B E s BB R BENE
the changes in their concerns and expectation. 1k, -
The materiality assessment has undergone the following key FEEMTELBTATERSE
steps:

Key Steps of Materiality Assessment
EEMTANEREL R

Establishing an issue library

BEVZREE I

With the ESG Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 Stakeholders participation FHEZHR
to the Listing Rules as the foundation, and based on We obtain the comments of stakeholders
the business development of the Group and appeals through questionnaires and interviews,
of stakeholders, the library of ESG issues of the Group which cover the management of
f?r 2033 was established vvithdi tgta\ of 18 issues. the Group, employees, suppliers,
VA EAR RIRt %27 (ESGHREIRS]) AEH - customers and investors/shareholders.

RIEANEE BB R M EFFK -
B TAREE T - =FEHRIESG HE
BEA 18 AR -

BB BRBMBR TR
EMFHENSR
NERETEREE - &8 -
HER  FREREE IR -

Issues assessment ZEEE{L

Based on the concerns of various stakeholders,
importance assessments of ESG issues

are conducted from two dimensions:
“importance to the stakeholders”

and “importance to the Group's operations”.

An analysis is then conducted to

derive an issue matrix and list of significant issues.

RIBERFOENORDIR - 1 [HR0E

Review and confirmation &% &

Based on discussions with key stakeholders and
internal discussions among management,

the management team will ensure that all major
and significant environmental, social, and
governance categories that are important to
business development are reported and comply
with relevant environmental laws and regulations.

R R R R A I B IR E 2 PR

MEbE R - BB ERE EBRREEN MERE] M HEEEENER]
PIBEEMERARE - HEMEQMERETT PB4 HETESG R B 2 R -
HE - WETHENRIDEAEER - RIREFT DT AT R AR AN

& E=ED
EZRERE -
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued) 6.

1= 45

6.1 Materiality Assessment (Continued) 6.1

The following materiality matrix summarises the Group's
material ESG issues as set out in the ESG Report:

HERERRE

BFREZHR#)

EERMFE )
ATEZMREBARE HERE
AREMEMNERNRRE  HERER

iy gm .
B

2023 Materiality Matrix
CECCFEEEMEME

\ High Customer Information and
E Privacy Protection
= B ERIALRR RS (o] Governance
(o) &8
O Operational
®E
® Social
e
Customer Experience
Emissions Management and Safety EQVQO”WC”I
oRpER EEERAEE =
o
Occupational Health
Service Quality Resource Use and Safety
Prohibit Child Labour BRIEEE  BRER |nellectual property EEFERZ S
and Forced Labour @ (o) rights protection ()
ZFETHSEESE) B ERERE
Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-Discrimination
FERE  ZTAENRER Operate in a Credible and
o Anti-money Laundering o Compliant Manner
Staff Training and REBE AERARNELEH R
C T Career Development
ommunity Charity ) STHEIIMBERR
i esimant Climate Changevﬁwsks = ® ®
M AR RIRE and Opportunities '
FIRE (O ABRTE Compliance
Employment
o BRER
Supply Chain Anti-corruption Policy and Corporate Governance and
Management Whistleblowing Procedure Risk Management
HEREE RESBERARERF TRERARRER
o o
-
>
Low IMPORTANCE TO THE GROUP’S OPERATIONS High
& HEBEENSEMY 7
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BRIR-HE8RER

HE

6. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued)
6.2 The Group’s ESG Issues Library

Level of
importance
EZEE
High

=]

Gl
High

=]

=]
High
=
High
=3
Hign
f=>
High

=]

B
Hiot

=

Hoh

5
Medium
H

Medium
F

Medium
F

Medium

i

Medium
H

Medium
Medium

Medium
F

Low

&

Low

&

ESGissue
number

ESGZE N
10

Description

it

Customer Information and
Privacy Protection

REEMAALRBRE

Operate in a Credible and
Compliant Manner

AEHNERNEE TR

Anti-money Laundering*

RARE

Occupational Hea\th and Safety

BxEREL:

Customer Experience and Safety

RFERANLE

Corporate Governance and
Risk I\/\anagement*
CEERERRER"

Resource Use

ERER

Compliance Employment

ARER

Intellectual property rights protection®

MBERRE

Service Quality

REEE

Emissions Management

e

Equal Opportunity, Diversity and
Anti-Discrimination*

FEESE ST AREE

Prohibit Child Labour and Forced Labour*

HIFETMoRELE

Staff Training and Career Development
8 Tk R

Climate Change Risks and Opportunities
RIEZ (LA ERNEE

Anti-corruption Policy and

Whlstleblovwr)g Procedure
RESREERERT

Commumty Charity and Investment

HRZEEHEEE

Supply Chain Management
HEmER

* The new ESG issues introduced in FY2022/2023 materiality

assessment.
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62 EEESGEHEEE

Corresponding section

HEEH

18.5 Customer Privacy and Data

185 FFLEAMSE

All sections

FrE D

19. ANTI-CORRUPTION
19.RE)5

13. HEALTH, SAFETY AND SECURITY
1385 R2HERE

182 Quality Assurance and Customer Satisfaction
182mERENERMEE

5. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

SOEER

9. USE OF RESOURCE
9.8 RER

12. EMPLOYMENT
12.1EE

184 Intellectual Property Rights
184 FIBEE

18.1 Service Quality
181 REEE

7. EMISSION
1873:¢/)

12. EMPLOYMENT

12.1EE

15. LABOUR STANDARDS

15. 8 T %8|

14, DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
14, B R B

1. CLIMATE CHANGE
= 454

ﬂ% """"" it
19. ANTI-CORRUPTION

19.RE)5

16. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

16 ERE

17. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

17 EEEE

* —E- o CHREESE T S

SIAMFERE - HERERER



N

B IRRE AR A A

International Entertainment Corporation

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL
EMISSION

The following table sets out the targets set by the Group in 2021, the
key topics relating to the targets and the progress made by the

Group against the targets:
Key Topics
HEEE

Air and Greenhouse Gas
("GHG") Emissions

BER SR = SR B BEIX

Hazardous Waste

BEREY

Hazardous and
Non-Hazardous Waste

BERZEMNEEZERY

Defined Targets
ERIHNERZR

Reducing the intensities of GHG
emissions by at least 5% by the end of
FY2029/2030 compared to
FY2020/2021 baseline (96.06 tCO,e
per million HKS revenue)
BT/ —BRFENE
ERE B -ZE-N,/=EWK
FEFEMRERBHERERER
D E D5% (96068 — & 1L Bt &
2/ ABETHEAN)

Reducing the intensity of hazardous
waste produced by at least 5% by the
end of FY2029/2030 compared to the
FY2020/2021 baseline (0.013 tonnes
per million HKS revenue)

WMo T —BBEFE
MEERL BT -hH =%
FBREEFE BEEEMEL
BRALEL5%(00130E, HE#
TTWA)

Maintain zero non-compliance with
laws and regulations relating to the
generation and disposal of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste
EETEBELENRERAENE
EREZYHERFOER D HER
TERBEN

The Group dedicates its effort to minimize the impact of the Group's
business operations on the environment and believes that it is
responsible for protecting the environment. Therefore, the Group
has implemented the Environmental Protection Policy to reduce its
environmental footprint and ensure compliance with environmental
laws and regulations. The policy emphasizes the need to conserve
natural resources and energy. It also sets out guidelines on waste

disposal and GHG emissions.

Rk 2 REREHS

A. BiE

7. HERYD
TERIETAEMN B —FETHE
= RA AR EREE AR EE T
BB E S EREHEE -

Progress in 2023
—EC=FEER

Achieved

In progress. Despite the significant increase in revenue
for the Group in the 2023, the resumption of normal
hotel operations in the Philippines after the pandemic
has led to an increase in the number of hotel guests.
This, in turn, has resulted in more frequent maintenance,
repairs, and replacement of hotel facilities, as well as
increased usage of cooking oil in the restaurants.
Additionally, some energy-saving and leak prevention
maintenance projects were carried out during the
reporting period, leading to a substantial increase in the
generation of hazardous waste by the Group.

WMITER - MEAERER T - =FEURALIE
Be BERARTEFREFRELENRIBBIEBE
MESMELER <BEEEHELMN  GHUE/E
RIBHMEE  BIERERERERMBSEMAE -
N EEREREEST T — L MpIREEERR
BYEBEMEENASEYAR LI -

Achieved

ARE BB A A B K 158 B MR ER
NEERERE YRASRERERER
o Bt - NEBDHETRRBER AR D E
RIZ RO L REREB T IRBEAENAS - AR
BERFRERANERMERDMBEN - K
SETHERREREMEE RERBIR
OECETI
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
EMISSION (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
relating to air and GHG emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. The relevant
laws and regulations included, but not limited to, the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance (Cap.311) of Hong Kong, Waste Disposal
Ordinance (Cap.354) of Hong Kong, Environmental Law (Law No.
2/91/M) of Macau, Republic Act No. 4850 of the Philippines and The
Philippine Clean Air Act (Republic Act No. 8749).

In response to the growing concerns about climate change, the
Group has set a target of reducing its total GHG emissions intensity
by at least 5% in FY2029/2030, using approximately 96.06 tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent ("tC0O,e") per million HKS revenue in 2021
as the baseline.

7.1 Air Emissions

The Group's major air emissions are generated from the fuels
consumed by the Group'’s vehicles and emergency power
generator at the Philippines’ hotel operations. The types of air
emissions generated from the Group’s operations include
nitrogen oxides ("NO,"), sulphur oxides ("SO,") and particulate
matter (“PM"). The Group promotes the minimization of air
emissions generated by the Group. Therefore, the Group has
adopted a series of measures to strive to reduce air emissions.
The air pollutant reduction measures include encouraging
employees to carpool and drive less. To minimize fuel
consumption when picking up and delivery services to our
hotel guests, we require drivers to turn off the engine to
prevent excessive air emission generated from idling engine
and take the shortest and most efficient route to the
destination. For the office operations, we also encourage
communication through video, telephone conferences,
electronic communication and other means to minimize the
number of travelling during the year.

Compared to 2022, the Group has significantly reduced its air
emissions in 2023. This is mainly due to the hotel conducted
three preventive maintenance on the substation, which were
more frequent than in the current year. During the
maintenance period, the substation had to be shut down, and
diesel emergency generator was used to provide power to the
entire hotel building.

Furthermore, in the previous year, there was a temporary
interruption in the power supply due to the power supplier's
annual maintenance. The hotel also collaborated with the
local Department of Environment and Natural Resource to
conduct emission tests on the generator, which required
additional use of emergency generator. Due to these factors,
the use of diesel emergency generators was more frequent in
2022 compared with 2023, resulting in higher air emissions in
2022.

Annual Report £ 2 2022/23

N

Rig (%)
BEnkm (&)
RIREHR - NEB WA BERTESTH
?ﬁ@ﬁ&/'*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁl A1 7K R = A BE
T BENEERZEYNELENERZRER
=M - AR AR BEETRERRES
ERSAETEH(FEINE) BEEVERE
EGDI(FE34E)  BMREFNEZELA(E
2/91/M5ﬁ)£?$) JEEE KA B X Republic
Act) BB 4850 1§ M FER B 2= ’Eh/gt/?/?i( £ AN B
SRS 8749 1§) °

ATESREFCHZEENEE  ~&E

BEMU B —FEENEEEATRAY
%O — R EBER  N_T—-H/=
SHREEREAERENEEREE D
5% M) B iR o

7.1 BEREER
ZF%EEE’JJ?ELEFE&}FEAZF%@E
SEREMBEEERAERESES
HFE R B IRRL $%l%ﬁ*ﬁﬁ§$f
R BERNBEEREEm(INo,]) -
mEILY (50, ) BB ZER T ([PM]) °
AEERBREERSAEBREE T
e Bt AEBESIE—RIIEE
BB L BERER - AL RS
YR EeEEEEEES R )TE LR
LER - BTRIEREZBEERR
RVREDERE - RPIERAIEEBA - A
B 1E PR Ze 8 5| 2 im B A R % 1) BE RE
B I B ER A% R A B A R B 4R B A
B R o ETB’\#J#’&ZLE CRPITNE
BB imiR g - |5 BFBEM

EAhm i ﬁ?&m’f : J/Aﬂid\tiﬁﬁﬂ
/A%(

HEBER-_E-_—FF - _;_—ET
EEEFERERE A EBERD -
E ?IFﬁiE@Eﬁ“ﬁﬁLﬁ

SORTEM M L ARFE RN
E%ﬁ% EHESRR 2FUFE
1 IEE M WAL Eﬁ%%*%%
BEE ) ZLRIRES

o EFEITARNEERETEE
Mg BEE NEEERRE AL
INEEHIREHEBGRERIAMAEME
Y B TEERCAA M S @%@
RAEZZEE# - AR L Ax -

T FERES *%%mﬁ%f_
”*—EF%%% mEH _—T——
FENBEIERERS -



B IRRE AR A A

International Entertainment Corporation

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
EMISSION (Continued)

7.

7.1

7.2

Air Emissions (Continued)

The following table sets out the Group's air emissions:

Rk 2 REREHS

A. RE®E)
7. BEnkimoE)

7.1 BERHER(E)
PATSRAGH H T AN 6 B 19 B R BRI

>R
2023 20223

Indicators™> EE —Fo=FE —_T-__FF

NO« emissions (kg) RE‘PERE (T52) 347.21 1,137.49

SOx emissions (kg) maElwEinE (=) 22.71 816.62

PM emissions (kg) BFR T E (T5e) 24.42 81830

Notes: Hiat -

1. The air emission calculation is based on the emission factors in “How 1. B R BEGT EE N B A P
to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on [ EEIRE - (e REARSE — MY
Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange. 8= RN A SUERERIES ] P

HIBER R B -

2. The calculation of air emissions from diesel generators is based on 2. SOmE ERAEE R G E AN ERIR
the emission factors in “AP-42: Compilation of Air Pollutant REFTEM A [AP-42 © BE RBEHUR &
Emissions Factors “ published by the U.S. Environmental Protection =R PEOPERERE -

Agency.
3. During the Reporting Period, the Group started collecting data on 3. PERE B - ANEER G KRR E S

the diesel consumption of backup power generators used in hotel
operation for the previous and current year. To ensure
comparability of the data, the air emissions from the usage of diesel
backup generators were also included as supplementary
information for the previous year.

GHG Emissions

The major sources of GHG emissions by the Group mainly
stem from the combustion of fuels and purchased electricity.
Fuels are used at the Group’s vehicles, emergency power
generator and restaurants of Philippines hotel operation,
electricity consumption resulted from the Group’s daily
operations of hotel and office and refrigerants consumption
from walk-in freezer and air-conditioning. The Group has
adopted various energy-saving measures in order to pursue its
emission target. The relevant energy-saving measures are
described in the section headed “Energy Consumption”.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total GHG emissions
was approximately 6,924.29 tCO.e (2022: 5,284.38 tCO,e). With
the return to normal operations after the pandemic, the Group
has experienced an increase in the number of operating days
in the Reporting Period as compared to 2022, contributing to
a higher consumption of electricity for maintaining daily
operations, representing a year-on year increase by
approximately 31.03%.

BRR EFRERAFENRSEERA
EAMSRRE - Bt - BEREIED
FIELBRME - B2 EY R SR IR Ik 1 7R
TR RSB ERMEENERY
HE -

BE SRR B

ARE R EREBHNEZRNAE
MEBABENEND - RBEERARA
SENER FREBEELHNES
LHERNERE BENHRAUEZEXRA
SEEEMPLAENATEL UK
EARSREMEFHNRLBEFER -
AEBE DRI BBEREIE AT I E
PREBENE B 1R - R IEE S
;X [RERERE] —6f -

7.2

RIFEE - AEENREREEEN
BEHE692420ME —FILIREE(Z
T~ T 528438 — ALk E
2) BERBRMEESESE @A=
T _FEMEE SEAERSHEN
EEHHIEN BHATHIBATE
EMEFEMNE NI BN
31.03% °
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A.
7.

78

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A. RIF#)
EMISSION (Continued) 7. HEntnoe)
7.2 GHG Emissions (Continued) 7.2 BERBHERE)
Meanwhile, the total GHG emissions intensity was HIfFEE - SERBERNEERE A
approximately 33.42 tCO,e per million HK$ revenue (2022: BEEBTIMALBL2BE_SixE
61.79 tCO,e per million HKS revenue), representing a year-on E(ZE-_—_FE - a8tk A
year decrease by approximately 45.92%, which is mainly due 6179 —FtixE =) R L
to the significant increase in the Group’s revenue in 2023 4592%  EEXEFERHR_-ZT-_=FE
compared with 2022. AEBHNBABRBRR-_ZEZ_FEH
EIEINFTEL -
The following table sets out the Group’s GHG emissions: ATRRBIE T AEBRHE=EREZHE
B
2023 2022
Indicators’ BE “ECCFE T FE
Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions? (tCOze) BE (SE—-)REREHR?
(B —RfLixEE 297.11 210.17
Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions® R (SR ) R ERE
(tCOze) HERC (B — L iRE 2) 6,627.18 5,074.21
Total GHG emissions (tCOze) BERBHREE
(H-—S{tmEE 6,924.29 5,284.38
Total GHG emissions intensity* BERBHEREERE (=
(tCOze/million HK$ revenue) StREE BEBTHRAN) 33.42 61.79
Notes: BiaE -

1. GHG emission data are presented in terms of tCOze and are based
on, including but not limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued by the
World Resources Institute and the World Business Council for
Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an ESG Report —
Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs" issued by
the Stock Exchange, “Guidelines to Account for and Report on
Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for Buildings
(Commercial, Residential or Industrial Purposes) in Hong Kong”
issued by the Environmental Protection Department and the
Electrical and Mechanical Services Department, “2015-2017
National Grid Emission Factor” from the Department of Energy of
the Republic of the Philippines and the “Global Warming Potential
Values” from the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change Fifth
Assessment Report (AR5) (2014).

2. Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions include emissions from fuel
combustion at mobile and stationary sources, as well as refrigerant
consumption.

3. Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions include emissions resulted

from the Group's purchased electricity.
4. During the Reporting Period, the Group's total revenue was

approximately HK$207,219,000 (2022: HK$85,525,000). The data are
also used for calculating other intensity data.
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i WERBEETRA TR LR
PRttt RO HERE THIEESBMGH
[BERBREZTE — bESHRR
EIRE] BRETEMGH [ INAEER
RodEgREAME — M= 1\
AR EMIBZERES] - BIBRES
EREBEIRERMHEEREY(E
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KRBz EMSRLEIES ] FFREH
MERERIEMN [ T —AFE_F
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
WASTE MANAGEMENT

The Group has established guidelines on the management and
disposal of waste. To reinforce the Group’s commitment to reduce
waste, the Group has set a target of reducing its total hazardous
waste intensity by at least 5% in 2030, using approximately 0.013
tonnes per million HKS revenue in 2021 as the baseline. The Group
has implemented waste reduction measures and encouraged its
employees to optimise the use of equipment and materials in order
to pursue its waste reduction target.

8.1

Hazardous Waste Management

As the Group is involved in hotel operations, various activities
such as the operation of restaurants and maintenance of hotel
rooms generate hazardous waste. The major types of
hazardous waste managed by the Group include engineering
wastes such as fluorescent light bulbs, containers of chemicals,
grease wastes, used industrial oil including sludge, lead
compounds, waste electrical and electronic equipment
(WEEE), and kitchen wastes such as vegetable oil including
sludge. The Group strictly follows its Policy on Handling
Hazardous Materials and Chemical when handling hazardous
waste to ensure the storage, collection, treatment and disposal
of hazardous waste comply with the applicable statutory
requirements. To avoid leakage, all the hazardous waste must
be stored in a designated location and properly labelled,
before being handled by accredited third party hazardous
waste haulers and treaters.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's total hazardous
waste generated was approximately 11.12 tonnes (2022: 3.33
tonnes) while the total hazardous waste intensity was
approximately 0.054 tonnes per million HKS revenue (2022:
0.039 tonnes per million HKS revenue), representing a year-on
year increase by approximately 233.97% and 38.69%
respectively. This was mainly due to the hotel’s operations
returning to normal after the pandemic, resulting in an
increase in the number of hotel guests. As a result, the
maintenance and repairs of the hotel’s facilities have become
more frequent. Additionally, some energy-saving and leak-
proofing maintenance projects were carried out during the
year, leading to an increase in engineering hazardous waste
generated. Furthermore, with the increase in the number of
hotel guests, the amount of hazardous waste from restaurants
and handling wastewater has also increased. All these
hazardous wastes are stored at designated areas within the
hotel and are handled by accredited hazardous waste haulers
and treaters.

® >

RIE (&)
EEEYEE

AEEDEY T EREZEYEIENERENE
e ARFBAEBRLBEENMNAR A&
EERIVU—E-_—FENEaEATRA
KOOBMARG R_E=SFEHLE
EEEYVBREREEZLSHMBEEZ - AEE
BB EZEYREE RSB (E BB
MR EHE R ASSER R EE B IZ -

EEBEEYER
HRAEBUYEEHELE  SEEH
MEBELENBEEHMRETELSR
EEEY  AEBEENTEEERE
ZERBETIREY - R
ftERAE BEEY - FRAMNT
¥ BRIERE LAY BEETF
EESRME (WEEE) - AR EEEY - 105
BB R - NEBREE B Z6E
BEYRBRRETHREEEDA R
BREX BREZSEEDNET
WE BEEAKEEHFAERER -
ARERR TEEEEEMHAT
RAEREHZR I AL FEEIZE - ARk
HERAINE =T EEREEMEHTR
MR EE

8.1

RBESHE AEEEBEERYE

EAABNNBE(ZET - _FE 333
W) MEEEEMRETELATAES
BT AL0AME( B - —FF

0.039ME) + %3 Bl [F] Lk 3 h0 49 233.97% FN
3869% ° £ E AR EIBEBEBEED
BEMEILER  SBEERHEEM -
BHUE G S R 4 A S BB E AN
PR o M EEREHMMEIT T — LA
BRI RHEEER  BHEATEST
BEEEED - I BEBERA
EHYIE N - B EE M EE K BRI P A A Y
EEEEME LN - TEEEEE
Y EREBERETEEEA - WHE
RN EREZERENERIEEE
I8 o
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

8.

80

8.1

A. RIFE#)
EEEMEIE (8)

WASTE MANAGEMENT (Continued) 8.
Hazardous Waste Management (Continued)
The following table sets out the Group’s hazardous waste
generation:
Indicators B
Total hazardous waste (tonnes) EEREYEE (1)
Total hazardous waste intensity’ EEBEEYBRERE"
(tonnes/million HKS revenue) (W, BEBTKA)

Notes:
1. For easier comparison with the baseline of the waste reduction

target, the total hazardous waste intensities were rounded to 3

decimal places.
2. The waste cooking oil is reclassified to hazardous wastes in 2023,

which was reported as non-hazardous wastes in 2022.
Non-hazardous Waste Management

8.2

Non-hazardous waste is generated from the daily activities of
the kitchens of the hotel restaurants and administrative work.
The major types of non-hazardous waste include daily office
operation wastes such as wastepaper and wastewater from
wastewater treatment plant of hotel operation.

During the reporting year, the hotel operation in the
Philippines has started collecting packaging waste that came
along with the purchased products, such as palm oil cans,
jasmine rice sacks, and soy sauce bottles. All of these
packaging wastes are segregated and collected by an
accredited wastes recycler.

8.1

8.2

Total recycled packaging waste in 2023

CEC-FEENAOWEEREY

—
[~

258 rice sacks

258 B K &%

613 palm oil cans

613 {845 48 Jh
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A. RIE#)
8. WASTE MANAGEMENT (Continued) 8. EBEWMERE W)
8.2 Non-hazardous Waste Management (Continued) 82 EMEREYEE (&)

During the Reporting Period, the Group generated
approximately 4.91 tonnes of non-hazardous waste (2022: 1.71
tonnes), representing an increase of 187% compared with
previous year. This was mainly due to the increase in the
number of operating days of our hotel and office operation
after pandemic compared to 2022, resulting more non-
hazardous wastes generated. The Group's total non-hazardous
waste intensity was approximately 0.024 tonnes per million
HKS revenue (2022: 0.020 tonnes per million HKS revenue),
representing a year-on-year decrease by approximately
18.45%, attributing to the significant increase in the Group's
revenue in 2023 compared with 2022.

Besides, the Group has started the implementation of the non-
hazardous wastewater data collection procedure in this year,
which the wastewater was generated from the wastewater
treatment facilities of the hotel operation, recording a total of
approximately 115,862 m?* of wastewater discharged (2022:
84,240 m?), representing a year-on-year increase by
approximately 37.54%. This is mainly due to the hotel's
operations returning to normal after the pandemic, resulting
in an increase in the overall water use from different units, and
the amount of wastewater that needs to be treated and
discharged has also increased accordingly.

The Group's total non-hazardous wastewater intensity was
approximately 559.13 m? per million HKS revenue (2022:
984.98 m?* per million HKS revenue), representing a year-on-
year decrease by approximately 43.23%, attributing to the
significant increase in the Group's revenue in 2023 compared
with 2022.

PR BRI - NS B E £ 49491 BEAY
MEREEY(ZE__FE : 1.71H) -
BEFEEINTI7% EXTEL2HANK
Bie BT - —FEMEL BB
ERBAEELERELBHEM - 5
BREENESEEYIEN - SENE
EEEYHRETEEEEEBITRA
#490024M8 (ZE = —4FF : 0020W8) -
R L #91845% @ EEX E R AN E
T FEMRLE AEEZT ==
FE R AKIRIE INFTER

o - AREESFE R E i EEE
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A. RE#)
8. WASTE MANAGEMENT (Continued) 8. REBEEWMEE®)
8.2 Non-hazardous Waste Management (Continued) 82 EMEBEEYEE (&)
The following table sets out the Group's non-hazardous waste IANRREANE T AEBEEANNEE
generation: REZEMIBR
2023 20223
Indicators BiE —EC=FE T _FE
Total non-hazardous waste' (tonnes) HMEREEYHAE  (HF) 4.91 1.71
Total non-hazardous waste intensity? EEEZEYHE RE 12
(tonnes/million HK$ revenue) (g, SEBBITHA) 0.024 0.020
Total non-hazardous wastewater* (m3) EEREKAE (L FHK) 115,862 84,240
Total non-hazardous wastewater BEBRKAEZTE
intensity® (m3/million HK$ revenue) (AFKR/BEEBTHRA) 559.13 984.98
Notes: BfaE -

1. Total non-hazardous waste includes only the amount of
wastepaper and other daily office operation waste generated and
its intensity is divided by the Group's total revenue in 2023.

2. For easier comparison with the baseline of the waste reduction
target, the total non-hazardous waste intensities were rounded to
3 decimal places.

3. The waste cooking oil is reclassified to hazardous wastes in 2023,
which was reported as non-hazardous wastes in the 2022.

4. During the Reporting Period, the Group has started the
implementation of the non-hazardous wastewater data collection
procedure, which the wastewater was generated from the
wastewater treatment facilities of the hotel operation. To ensure
comparability of the data, the amount of non-hazardous
wastewater discharged in the previous year was also
supplemented.

The Group has adopted the following environmentally friendly
initiatives to strive to reduce the Group's generation of waste.
Such initiatives include, but are not limited to:

encourage duplex printing;

separate metal, paper and plastic from other waste for
recycling; and

encourage hotel guests and staff to recycle waste
resources.

Through these measures, the Group has achieved positive

results. Recyclable waste collected by the Group is sent to
recyclers for treatment.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
USE OF RESOURCE

The following table sets out the targets set by the Group in 2021, the
key topics relating to the targets and the progress made by the
Group against the targets:

BRIR-HE8KRER

HE

RIE (&)
HiR{ER
TEIETAEER T —FLIWE

12 BESERENERBEARAEEEE
BABRTENEAER

Key Topics
eSS

Energy Consumption

RERUB#E

Water Consumption

FEIK

Defined Targets
ERIWERE

Reducing the intensities of total energy
consumption intensity by at least 5% by the end
of FY2029/2030 compared to FY2020/2021
baseline (166.86 MWh per million HKS revenue)
T/ HRFERRARE BRE
i%ﬁ%?(tﬁ,%/%ﬁuw\ma% KEE) - #§
EREERAEEZLR L% HEEZF
“NSETHBEEER -
Reducing the intensities of total water
consumption intensity by at least 5% by the end
of FY2029/2030 compared to FY2020/2021
baseline (1,184.19 m?® per million HKS revenue)
NZZE-T/ ——HRFERKETRER &
%Wtﬁ%%n%k1%9jﬁ%)%ﬁm
rEEEL /JEX’J\S% “EN=TH

Progress in 2023
—Bo=EEER

Achieved

Achieved

B4

When the Group operates its hotel complex, electricity and water are
consumed. As a result, the Group has established the Environmental
Protection Policy to regulate the use of resources. The policy aims to
achieve higher energy efficiency and reduce the unnecessary use of
resources.

9.1 Energy Consumption

The hotel and gaming operations in the Philippines are the
main energy-consuming units of the Group. The types of
energy used mainly include purchased electricity for daily
hotel operation, liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) used in the
kitchen, diesel used for backup power generators during
power outages at the hotel, as well as diesel and gasoline used
for company vehicles, etc.

AEBERERBEFARERBERENR
Ke Bt - AEBDHERRBEENAREER
TREER » ZBK E EIRR SRR E LR AT
VEHNEREM

9.1 Eb/ \/ﬁﬁ
FFRENEEMELEERAEEN
FERRBEFEEN - FEFAMER
BAGERANBEERRELNEESE
N BB E AR AR (LPG)
BEFEREREEREBNH -
AR A Tiiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ /EEW/‘L/EE °
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
9. USE OF RESOURCE (Continued)

9.1 Energy Consumption (Continued)

To reinforce the Group's commitment to efficient energy use,
the Group has set a target of reducing its total energy
consumption intensity by at least 5% in 2030, using
approximately 166.86 MWh per million HKS revenue in 2021
as the baseline. The Group has adopted various energy-saving
measures in order to pursue its energy use efficiency target.

The relevant energy-saving measures include:

84

use LED lights in the hotel rooms, hallways and
restaurants to reduce the number of fluorescent light
bulbs;

install variable-frequency drive to regulate the power
output of motors;

conduct regular inspections to monitor any unusual
energy usage, such as maintain monthly electricity
meter records in order to spot any unusual use or loss of
electricity;

preset the hotel room temperature at 23°C while the
guest keycard is inserted into the card slot, and maintain
27°C if keycard is removed;

regular maintenance of kitchen burners to increase the
LPG efficiency and LPG pipe to prevent leakage;

“Notice to Explain” will be issued to employees who are
not using energy according to the company guideline.
They will be requested to provide reasons for their
actions, and potential penalties may apply; and

drive less and carpool.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
USE OF RESOURCE (Continued)

9.

9.1

Energy Consumption (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group's total energy
consumption amounted to approximately 12,078.35 MWh
(2022: 8,775.38 MWh), which is mainly came from the
electricity consumption. With the resumption of normal
operations following the pandemic, the Group has
experienced an increase in the number of operating days in
the Reporting Period as compared to 2022, contributing to a
higher consumption of electricity for maintaining daily
operations and higher LPG consumption for kitchen operation.
The total energy consumption intensity was approximately
58.29 MWh per million HKS revenue in the Reporting Period
(2022: 102.61 MWh per million HKS revenue), representing a
year-on-year decrease by approximately 43.19%, attributing to
the significant increase in the Group's revenue in 2023
compared with 2022.

The following table sets out the Group's energy consumption:

Rk 2 REREHS

A. BRIR@#)
9. BRER#E)
9.1 BEREFE(£)
RS R AEENERERRE
W E1207835 KA (ZEZ2FF ¢

877538 K FLES) + EERE A EHFE ©
BEERIBRMELTES SEER

EHANELABBR T _—_FEMH
LEMEMERERBRESENE

JHREIL NN A I Y 55 1 fE MU LPG JE FE 35
me RMEBANEERERERERE
HNAETEEBTWASS29KER (=
T _FE:5EEBETRAI026I
KEEF) » LR A #44319% @ E5F R
RZZE_ZFEEERARHE ==
T FEREESEN-

AEBRBEREFRN T RAR

2023 2022
“E-=FE C—T--FE
Direct energy consumption' 24 (MWh) BHEEBEEE 2 KRE) 995.50 288.65
Diesel consumption (MWh) Lo SEFESE KR E) 119.47 226.25
— Company vehicle (MWh) — AT EH (JKFEF) 68.93 59.21
— Emergency generator (MWh)* — BT JKER) 50.54 167.04
Gasoline consumption (MWh) VURHRE S KRR 40.05 62.40
LPG consumption (MWh) BB RRERESE CKER) 835.98
Indirect energy consumption® (MWh) BliEfe Rl EE kR E) 11,082.85 8,486.73
Total energy consumption (MWh) BEREHEAR (JKE) 12,078.35 8,775.38
Total energy consumption intensity BEREREERE
(MWh/million HK$ revenue) (KRE BEEBTHA) 58.29 102,61

Notes:

1. The unit conversion calculation is based on the conversion factors
in "How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs" issued by the Stock Exchange
and the “Energy Statistics Manual” issued by the International
Energy Agency.

2. The direct energy consumption includes diesel, liquefied petroleum
gas and diesel consumption of our Philippines operation.

3. The indirect energy consumption includes electricity consumption
of our Philippines operation and Hong Kong Headquarters.

4. During the Reporting Period, the Group started collecting data on
the diesel consumption of emergency power generator used in
hotel operation. To ensure comparability of the data, the diesel
consumption of emergency power generator were also included as
supplementary information for the previous year.

st -

1. B BESEERB A EMD [0
BERE  HEREREE — M=
RIGHBENIRRERIES! ) EFE‘JL?Q

B FIA K BB
FHE -

BERFBRME [8E

Rgsst

2. HEERBREHRAREIEEEZE

4ol RIE AR R AL

3. BEERERERAKEFREE

CHIEFE
=l

BB AMH AEIER -

4. R EER - AEERBRENEEE

B ) R S B B PT R  H S

SHAE -

RHEREBO AL - TFE AT

TEFERSBEMMEMAIR

=
= o

Annual Report %% 2022/23

H

85



International Entertainment Corporation

B IRRE AR A A

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERKRE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

9.

86

USE OF RESOURCE (Continued)
9.2 Water Consumption

The Group uses water supplied by the local government of
different operating locations, mainly for hotel operations and
employees’ daily life. Although we had not encountered any
problems accessing dependable water sources, the Group
undoubtedly acknowledged that water resources are a
precious, shared, and limited resource.

To reinforce the Group’s commitment to water conservation,
the Group has set a target of reducing its total water
consumption intensity by at least 5% in 2030, using
approximately 1,184.19 m?® per million HKS revenue in 2021 as
the baseline. The Group has adopted various water-saving
measures in order to pursue its water efficiency target. The
relevant water-saving measures include:

encourage all employees and guests to develop the
habit of conserving water consciously;

strengthen the Group's water-saving promotion;
conduct regular inspections on water pipes and cooling
tower on water pipes and cooling tower to promptly
identify and rectify any water leakage;

posting water-saving slogans; and

guide employees to use water reasonably.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
9. USE OF RESOURCE (Continued)
9.2 Water Consumption (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total water
consumption was 160,125.00 m?, indicating a substantial
increase of approximately 120.7% compared to 2022 (2022:
72,545.40 m?). This surge in water consumption was mainly
due to the resumption of normal operations after the
pandemic. Meanwhile, a water leakage issue was identified
during the Reporting Period, where prompt action was taken
to rectify the problem. The Group's total water consumption
intensity was approximately 772.73 m? per million HKS$
revenue (2022: 848.24 m? per million HKS revenue),
representing a year-on-year decrease by approximately 8.9%,
attributing to the increase in the Group's revenue in 2023
compared with 2022.

Rk 2 REREHS

A. RIE#®)
9. BIRERE)
9.2 FXE(#)

RBEHE ~NEEHNEKEER
160,12500 . 5K - RZT = —FZiE
IN#91207% (—ZZF = — & : 72,54540
MNITK) c EBARIBEMMFEXRELTER
HRNRIEERIREESELSHTR - &It
B EREHRNERRT —ERK
8 - W R RFERENE BE T AR R o &
EMFEKEERENABAEEBTK
ANIDRBIYIAK(ZE-Z—FE : §7
%%ﬁWAmwuﬁﬁﬂ'ﬁmﬁm
#89%  EHRANR_ZT_=FEEH
M&A*Hﬂ_%:_ifﬁﬁﬁim °

The following table sets out the Group's water consumption: REEMNFEKENTE :
2023 2022
SBoCFE T _FRE
Total water consumption (m3) FKBE(ZFXK) 160,125.00 72,545.40
Total water consumption intensity FKBEERE
(m3/million HK$ revenue) (LK BEBTEA) 772.73 848.24
9.3 Packaging Materials 9.3 SHEME

Since the Group's operations did not involve any industrial
productions, the Group did not consume a significant amount
of packaging materials during the Reporting Period. The
disclosure on the total packaging material used for finished
products does not apply to the Group'’s operations.

RMRASEEBIL NF MEFMTIELE
B BASERRERALEBFEKR
BEEEMK - EREKRAANEE
REMHETNERNAKENER
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10.

88

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The Group works tirelessly to mitigate the environmental impacts of
its activities through adopting industry best practices, targeting at
reducing natural resources consumption and emissions. The Group's
Environmental Protection Policy has been established to ensure its
impacts on the environment and natural resources are regularly
monitored and properly managed.

The Group has guidelines to encourage its employees to reduce
water and paper consumption, promote the use of electronic copies
and collect recyclable items. In addition, the Group has its
wastewater treatment plant in place to remove contaminants from
sewage so that the quality of the discharged sewage meets the
requirements of the Philippines’ Laguna Lake Development
Authority (the “LLDA"). To comply with the Republic Act 4850, the
Group submitted the Quarterly Self-Monitoring Reports to LLDA on
time. The activities of the Group comply with the relevant
environmental protection laws and regulations and do not have a
significant impact on the environment and natural resources.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES (Continued)

In our upcoming renovation, our hotel operation is committed to
implementing several sustainability measures to enhance our
environmental protection efforts. These measures include:

10.

(&

RIR
RIEMXAEIR (#)
EESRTOBF TS - RM0EELE
HPIBN BIESBARFBEREN - AMR
RMWBFRE T  ELBIRIE -

Foamless shampoo: We will adopt foamless shampoo to minimize chemical discharge and reduce the
environmental impact associated with traditional shampoo usage.

ERARRERS | BPISRAERRESEK UM BME B - WA EGAERERER
BT E -

Sustainable packaging: We will replace individual plastic bottles of shampoo, conditioner, body wash,
and water with shower supplies dispensers and water glass bottles in all guest rooms. This initiative aims to
reduce plastic waste and promote a circular economy.

ARFEEE ZFBAERERE AL  REX NABETKNEREBRERR2RMEAM
WIRIKHR - EEFEE R BRI (R ERIREE -

Water-efficient toilets: As part of our commitment to water conservation, we will replace existing toilets
with models that consume less water. This step will contribute to a more sustainable water management
system within our hotel.

BIKRIAR : {ERRPIAGREORKN—E5 - HABAFRKE DB ERB ORI - &2
B BN B MRS NEL B B EAIKER R o

Energy-efficient air-conditioning chillers: To reduce our carbon footprint, we will upgrade our air-
conditioning chillers with models that are 35% more energy-efficient. This improvement will significantly
minimize our environmental impact and contribute to our long-term sustainability goals.
HEERRBARL : B TRDIRBENE - BPIARLEEELS  FEEERUEGEIES 35% © EHN
ERARBDBMERENTE  TADRERRMORBAIHEERARE -

By implementing these sustainability measures, we aim to mitigate FRERELIFERRER  BRMEER
our hotel’s adverse impacts on the environment and natural OREHIRIFNEAB RN TAZE - M
resources. We recognize the importance of responsible RABEENRBEEENEEY - WBOR

environmental management and are dedicated to continuously
improving our sustainability practices.

TEERMINAIREEREE -
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11.

20

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
CLIMATE CHANGE

Climate-related issues are affecting societies around the world and
therefore it has also impacted the Group’s business. The Philippines,
one of the locations where the Group operates, is particularly
susceptible to climate-related issues such as super typhoons and
flooding. The Group acknowledges the far-reaching impact of
climate change and is eager to combat climate change proactively.
The Group has formulated the Climate Change Policy to enhance its
ability to respond to climate impacts and mitigate the risks and
impacts of climate change on the Group, thereby helping the Group
to adapt to and resist climate change.

11.1 Physical Risks

In view of the seriousness of climate change, the Group
identified acute physical risks that might significantly impact
the Group. As climate change is causing extreme weather
events to be more frequent and severe, the Group might
encounter situations where the Group’s hotel operations are
being adversely affected under unpleasant weather such as
earthquake, tsunami, typhoons, and heavy rain. The hotel
business is one of the Group’s major sources of income, so the
adverse impact on hotel operations would cause a direct
negative impact on the Group’s revenue. In addition, the
extreme weather events would prevent people from travelling,
the reduction in the number of tourists and thus a reduction
in room occupancy in the Group's hotel would reduce the
revenue from hotel operations. If extreme weather damages
the hotel facilities, the Group will experience a loss of assets.

The Group has taken different actions to manage the
abovementioned acute physical risks. For example, the Group
developed a set of arrangements for extreme weather so that
loss can be reduced or avoided when extreme weather affects
the Group's operating sites. In addition, the Group has
purchased insurance against risks of property loss. It is believed
that the potential financial impacts can be minimized with
adequate preparations for extreme weather events.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
11. CLIMATE CHANGE (Continued)
11.2 Transition Risks

A. ®BE@#®)
11. |iz8ML &)
11.2 ERE

Other than climate-related issues which have impacted the
Group, the Group is aware that transition risks associated with
climate related issues may significantly impact the Group. As
different countries are working on the goals of the Paris
Agreement, the Group expects the laws and regulations
related to climate change are going to be more stringent. As a
result, the Group may face legal risks, which may cause the
Group to bear higher operating costs to comply with
regulatory changes.

The Group is devoted to minimizing risks that may derive from
climate change. The Group has communicated its actions on
climate change mitigation and adaptation to the public via
multiple channels, particularly the ESG Report. Due to climate
change, public awareness of environmental protection has
risen and more people tend to prefer environmentally friendly
products and services. The Group strives to reduce the market
risks associated with climate change by putting effort into
environmental protection. For example, the Group minimizes
the use of single-use items such as plastic tableware in its
hotel, provides toiletries with minimal packaging for hotel
guests and encourages hotel guests and staff to recycle waste
resources.

The Group has integrated climate risks into its internal control
process to holistically take account of climate change.
Through the internal control process, the Group recognized
the risks and opportunities that arose in the transition to a
low-carbon economy. The Group will continue to assess the
effectiveness of the Group's actions on climate change and
enhance its resilience against climate-related issues.
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